Notice pgsted: April 15, 2019 Time: 3:30 p.m.

Pels Mty

Amie McNaylor, Asgjstant Secretary

CATS

CAPITAL RREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

REGULAR MEETING

OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
APRIL 16, 2019
4:30 pm
BREC Administration Building 6201 Florida Boulevard
Commission Room
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

AGENDA

L CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue
Il ROLL CALL: Ms. Amie McNaylor
lll.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MARCH 19, 2019 MEETING: Mr. Mark Bellue
IV. PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Mark Bellue
V. SAFETY MOMENT: Ms. Renee Simpson
VI.  ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff
VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON
Finance & Executive: Mr. Mark Bellue
Technical, Policies & Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux
Audit: Mr. Kahli Cohran (no meeting held)

Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman
Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins (no meeting held)

o GBS b



Vil

ACTION ITEMS

1.

10.

11.

Consideration of renewal and amendment of customer satisfaction
surveys with ETC Institute

Consideration of award of antifreeze services contract to Miguez Fuel

Consideration of approval to waive fares on April 25, 2018 for National
Transit Get On Board Day

Consideration of authorization to approve CATS Information Technology
Backup Policy

Consideration of authorization to approve CATS Password Policy

Consideration of authorization to approve CATS Passenger Code of
Conduct and Banning Passenger Policy

Consideration of approval to declare five Gillig buses and one Ford
Cutaway van and parts as surplus

Consideration of authorization to add Dwana Williams as signatory on
behalf of CATS for all Whitney/Hancock Bank accourits and consideration
of authorization for the CEO to execute all documents required by
Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes

Adopt and levy the ad valorem tax millage rate of 10.6 mills for the City of
Baton Rouge for the year 2019

Adopt and levy the ad valorem tax millage rate of 10.6 mills for the City of
Baker for the year 2019

Consideration of authorization for the CEO to settle the claims of Arthur
Davis, Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Caria Davis under the
terms of the settlemeant and judgment payment policy adopted by the
Board on July 20, 2004 as amended. (This matter might possibly be
discussed in executive session. As required by the Open Meeting Law,
notice is hereby given that this claim is pending in the 19" Judicial
District Court and is Suit Number 640,054, Sec. 22; and that Arthur Davis,
Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Caria Davis are the plaintiffs and
Capital Area Transit System and Eric Marselis are the defendants.)

PUBLIC COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

3%




Individuals having questions regarding the meeting should contact Amie McNaylor,
225.389.8920, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70802.

Individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should contact
Karen Denman (225} 389-8920, Ext. 1504, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA
70802, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately preceding the Tuesday
meeting.

[P35}




CATS

CAPITAL RRER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
MARCH 19, 2019
4:30 p.m.
BREC Administration Building
6201 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

MINUTES
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Jim Brandt
Mr. Bellue called the meeting to order.
ROLL CALL
Present at the meeting were members Messrs. Bellue, Brandt, Cohran,
Lambert, and O’Gorman and Mss. Green, Perkins and Pierre. Dr. Breaux
was absent. Also present were Mr. Bill Deville, CEOQ; Mr. Darrell Brown,

CAO; other CATS staff; Creighton Abadie, CATS attorney; and members of
the public.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 19, 2019 MEETING
Mr. Brandt moved to approve the minutes of the February 19, 2019, meeting

and Mr. Lambert seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mr. Bellue welcomed the public and provided a review of the public
comment process.

SAFETY MOMENT



A

Ms. Simpson shared a safety moment centered on effective practices on
bus transit safety.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1.

Customer Satisfaction Survey Results: Mr. Aaron Heckele, ETC
Institute

Mr. Heckele shared that the second round of customer surveys were
conducted in November 2018 and more than 2,000 usable surveys
were collected.

eyed rely on CATS as
riders have an annual

It was noted that the majority of rjd
their primary means of transpo

customers will once again be surveyed in the
f 2019 to ensure the agency is addressing the issues
ant to the customers.

spring
that are i

Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Devilie and Executive Staff

Ms. Dwana Williams shared that, in Operations, there are currently
131 active operators.

Ms. Williams noted that CATS had 221,163 passenger trips in
February. There were 5.8 preventable accidents per 100,000 miles.




Ms. Wiliiams shared that there were 200 trips cancelled in February
of the approximateiy 33,000 trips for the month. The percentage of
on-time trips was 67.26%. There were 31.7 complaints per 100,000
miles in February. There were 1,792 mean miles between road calls
for the month.

Mr. Deville reported that CATS has rebid the construction project for
the East (Cortana) Transit Center and there will be a recommendation
later in the meeting.

heir facility, CATS staff
are in the road test/punch
head of the planned

After the BYD electric bus mspectlon i

o]
nd Scheduling are closely
s that have arisen are some

operators saying ce
comfort breaks and

s hired a new Human Resources
March 20™. Mr. Fight comes to the
ears in human resources, and more

walk-and-r é tour was held to encourage resrdents and business
owners who live along Plank Road to tell officials what the future
should look like for the corridor.

In Facilities Pianning, Mr. Deville let the board know that CATS is
anticipating FTA’s approval of the 2018 formula. Legal counsel is
working with LSU officials to complete certain requirements prior to
executing the purchase agreement.




The Cortana Transit Center construction project was rebid and three
firms submitted bids. The lowest bidder is in compliance with the ITB
and will be recommended for consideration of award.

Mr. Deville let the board know that a preliminary assessment of the
BRT stations has been completed by SJB. The assessment focused
on right-of-way limitations, ADA compliance, site evaluations, and
development of conceptual designs. The assessment confirmed the
suitability and acceptability of the station locations and allows the
design phase to advance to the utility phase. The sites deemed
unacceptable have been replaced with alternate sites.

CATS and HNTB met with City-Pa and DOTD officials to
explore the challenges associated:
Narrow rights-of-way and acc

transfer of Plank Road from

discussed.

s been identified by CRPC
with local match to 2ATS and the City of Baker.

The antl i

the statement of budgeting versus actual for 2018
N and noted that CATS had $26,438,164 in total

VIl. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON

1.

Finance and Executive: Mr. Jim Brandt

Mr. Bellue referred the members to the minutes of the committee’s
March 14"meeting in their packets. He shared the highlights and
noted that the action items would be considered later in the meeting.




2. Technical, Policies and Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux

Ms. McNaylor noted the committee did not meet but plans to meet in
April.

3. Audit: Mr. Cohran

Mr. Cohran noted the committee did not meet but would be meeting
March 25,

4. Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman

He shared the
the Plank Road

BRT route, the Plank-Nich
and Ride, and various FTA

he on-time percentage was 90.5%.
:month of February.

5 is a participant. The contract originated in 2014 and
renewal; the option is for up to seven renewals. The
contract gasoline and diesel utilized by all CATS vehicles and
is based on Qil Price Information Services (OPIS) pricing.

it was noted that CATS is only billed for fue! actuaily used, not fuel
delivered to the agency.

Mr. Brandt moved that the CEO is authorized to renew the automated
fuel dispensing services contract with Mansfield Oil {formerly
FuelTrac) and Mr. Cohran seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited




public comment and there was none. The motion passed
unanimousliy with no abstentions.

2. Consideration of award of contract for construction services for
Cortana Transit Center construction project

Mr. Darreil Brown let the members know that the solicitation was
rebid after the two original bids were deemed to be flawed.

icitation and all three
struction Group was the

Three bids were received from the rebid
were deemed to be responsive. Kelly
lowest responsive bidder at $524,84

construction of the Cortana
Group, LLC and to enter i

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Ms. Linda DeSi
There are n
inquired wh

of the CATS systeim.
‘ransit Center and she




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

Bill Deville
Chief Executive Officer

Darrell Brown
Chief Administrative Officer

DIVEDERITETES
Chief Operations Officer

brcats.com

CHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

EXECUTIVE REPORT
April 2019
Bill Deville and Executive Staff

INTRODUCTION OF NEW HR MANAGER Jim Fight: Bill Deville

Overview of vision for Human Resources

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: Dwana Williams

Operations now has 122 active Operators

CATS currently has eight routes impacted by construction throughout the
service area. See the attached system map and note the routes in red that are
affected.

See attached Performance Measures

CEO NOTES: Bill Deville

HNTB met with CATS board and staff to discuss the results of the Redefinition
Study and next steps of the Plank-Nicholson BRT Corridor. Those steps include
HNTB leading tasks to advance the project, including National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) Environmental documentation, conceptual design and
development of an application to the Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA)
BUILD Transportation grants (Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage
Development instead of the FTA Small Starts Program. HNTB is working
closely with City Parish, Redevelopment Authority, DOTD, and CATS regarding
funding resources and what now appears to be a better and possibly lower
cost option.

CATS received word from Stephen Whitlow, of Merakey Gateway, noting that
Kevin Roig, Deputy Chief of Staff of Communications at the office of
Congressman Garret Graves, that the Congressman would like to continue the
momentum on the paratransit/Uber on-demand model used in Boston and
other areas, for CATS and Baton Rouge; a meeting is scheduled with MV on
Wednesday afternoon for an update on their Dallas program as a possible
template here as promised.

Operations, Scheduling, and Planning continue to monitor the SIP and address
opportunities and issues that arise.

MICROTRANSIT PILOT PROJECT: Bill Deville

CATS has partnered with TransLoc to determine best zone(s) in which to
provide the pilot project.

TransLoc met with CATS staff several times via conference call to determine
potential zones and has presented a simulation of the City of Baker and the
area surrounding Southern University and the Baton Rouge Airport.

The study has presented options from two on-demand multi-passenger
vehicles to six vehicles based on simulated trips.

CATS has committed $25,000 to TransLoc for the study.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

breats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

e The agency will have to undertake an RFP to solicit for a turnkey solution to
lease the vehicles, maintain the vehicles, and operate the on-demand service.

e $200,000 in grant funding has been identified for this project; these are grants
that CATS must use and close.

e There is no plan at this point to operate the project beyond a six-month pilot
period.

VANPOOL PROIECT: Bill Deville

e CRPCis conducting regional vanpool study as part of their three-year Travel
Demand Management (TDM) project.

e This vanpool study is in its early stages and is a spearheaded of CRPC.

e CRPC approached CATS to gauge our interest to be the operator/manager of
the vanpool program.

e Based on the recent discussions, the vanpool study working group
recommends a subsidy of $400/month/van amounting to an annual subsidy of
$4,800/van. The cost is scalable to number of vans included in the program.

e CRPCand CATS are working on identifying funding sources for implementing
vanpool program. CRPC’s Urban System (STP>200K), CATS 5307, and other
DOTD funds are some of the potential sources that are being considered.

PLANNING AND GRANTS: Garrick Rose

e Planning is preparing CATS FY19 grants applications and refining CATS
Program of Projects.

e Grants staff is continuing to prepare information requested by the FTA for the
Triennial Review Process.

e Planning met with the Downtown Development District staff to review the
downtown trolley service and consider adjustments to the trolley route. DDD
will assist in facilitating discussions for a downtown transit center.

e Planning is preparing a Three Year Program of Projects for inclusion in the
June 2019 SIP/STIP.

FACILITIES PLANNING: James Baker or Bill Deville
North Baton Rouge Transit Center:

e CATS is anticipating FTA’s approval of the 2018 formula funding.

e Legal counsel for CATS is working with LSU officials to complete certain
legislative requirements prior to executing the purchase agreement.

East Baton Rouge Transit Center — Cortana-Walmart Transit Center:

e The contractor, The Kelly Construction Group, has submitted all required
documentation to the Department of Public Works and is awaiting the
construction permit.

e Current service at Cortana will relocate its operation to the mall side of
Cortana Place; this is scheduled to begin at the end of the month subject to
the contractor’s construction schedule.

e Construction is scheduled to end by July 31°.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

The anticipated total cost of the construction project is $560,000; $31,000 has
been spent to date. This will be paid with local funds.

The anticipated total cost of the entire project, including amenities, is
$768,000.

A RFQ solicitation for custom shelters, signage, and an information kiosk for
the transit center is currently underway.

The anticipated cost of the shelters, signage and kiosk is estimated at
$300,000. Grant funds of $240,000 have been identified, with a local match of
$60,000.

Downtown Transit Center:

Recent discussions with DOTD officials and DPW officials continue in an effort
to identify suitable downtown sites to accommodate the transit center’s
operations.

DDD will assist in facilitating discussions for smaller downtown transit center
sites. The downtown transit center will likely not be a large hub but rather
three small stop locations.

BUS RAPID TRANSIT:
Plank Road BRT, Phase One:

The design and engineering phase is being conducted by the SJB Group and
began November 1, 2018.

The cost to date is $67,400 in local funds.

The construction phase has not been bid.

The anticipated cost of the construction phase is $1,700,000. The grant funds
allocation is $1,360,000; the required local match is $340,000.

The design/engineering and construction phases are expected to be
completed between end of the 4™ quarter of 2019 and the first quarter of
2020, depending on NEPA progress (environmental work expected to be of
the “categorical exclusion “ type).

The acquisition of custom shelters and enhanced amenities is grouped with
the amenities process mentioned earlier in this report.

The total project expected to cost around $900,000. $720,000 in grant funds
has been identified with a local match requirement of $180,000.

Plank-Nicholson BRT:

A preliminary assessment of the BRT stations has been completed by SJB. The
assessment focused on right-of-way limitations, ADA compliance, site
evaluations and development of conceptual design plans. The assessment has
confirmed the suitability and acceptability of the BRT station locations and
allows the design phase to advance to the utility phase. The sites deemed
unacceptable because of traffic issues, ADA compliance, space limitations, etc.
have been replaced with alternative sites.

CATS and the City-Parish are currently in discussions to review additional costs
requests to cover the NEPA (National Environmental Protection Act) study for



2250 Florida Boulevard Cl I I S

Batnn RUUEB LA 7“802 CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
PHONE:  225.389.8820

the Plank Phase One and Plank-Nicholson Phase Two projects. The NEPA
process is necessary as part of the Small Start submittal process.

e Once additional funding has been approved, CATS and HNTB will prepare
support documentation to secure environmental clearance for the Plank
(Phase 1) and Plank-Nicholson (Phase 2) projects. A Categorical Exclusion is
anticipated permitting both phases to proceed.

e HNTB has generated renderings illustrating the BRT station design proposed
at Chippewa and LSU. Though preliminary, these renderings illustrate the
context and setting for these planned transit improvements.

e The local funds allocated to the project to this point are $440,000; CATS and
the City-Parish have split the cost at $220,000 each.

e The City-Parish is competing for Capital Inprovement Grant (CIG), BUILD
grant, and other competitive grants for the project.

City of Baker:

Baker Transportation Center Project

e The Baker Transportation Center, a bus layover facility and a park-and-ride, is
a collaborative project among CATS, the City of Baker, and CRPC. CRPC s
spearheading this project.

e The first step this project is feasibility / Site planning and design concept
study.

e CRPC solicited a planning service contract to begin a site planning and design
concepts study. The study is expected to be completed before end of the
calendar year 2019.

e The goal of the site design study will be to:

o Identify a feasible location along Plank Road that has the synergy to

support implementation of a Park and Ride, building a Transportation
Center, and possible Transit Oriented Development (TOD).

o Design a transit facility site plan (Phase One) with complimentary
mixed-use/transit supportive development (Phase Two) for the
identified location.

o Develop detailed cost estimates for various project phases and
alternate site designs (if any).

o Obtain environmental clearance to allow for the purchase of the
property.

If the project is feasible, following are some of the anticipated next steps
include:

o Acquisition of property by City of Baker following the necessary
federal process

o Identify funds for implementation of Phase One

o Complete detailed design and obtain environmental clearance for
construction, Phase One

o Construct Phase One

hrcats.com




2250 Florida Boulevard CI l I S

Baton Ruuge LA 70802 CARITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

PHONE: 225.380.8920

o Identify and implement transit service improvements to complement
the new transit center
o Implementation of Phase Two by City of Baker
e Project Funding

‘Funding

Project Phase Amount ($) Funding Source CATS Responsibility

We are
here

FTA 5303 (MPO Transit Planning

‘- Feasibility Study 60,000 Funds) $12K (20% Local Match)
TDB City of Baker None
If the cost of the property is not
MPO STP>200K, Property enough to match the federal dollars,
TDB acquisition amount as local City of Baker and CATS could cost
match share the remainder of the needed
match

Phase Ii Design, Environmental, "
i c"v g o

e There isan MOU/CEA/agreement in place between CATS, CRPC and DOTD
that codifies the roles and responsibilities of each entity regarding regional
transit planning. Projects such as vanpool study, Baker Park and Ride, etc. fall
under the purview of this agreement.

brecats.com




| 08 {97R°8LO'TS) (ZZ9°CLL'TS) 0% TE6'FO15 T19°Z018 0% =+ 3ouEIEy SUONEIAA) 19N|
TFR078°CTS (LS6'TLE'TS) £STTR0FS 017'S56'SS 9T10°7TI$ 980°LOT T 0,L0°S86'1% soipisqng sunesedQ (101
GFETIF TS (L3S TOTIS) 0% LSS TOTTS (9T6"011%) £0L9STS 679°LIES SAIPISNG [eEIPA [BI0L,
000°CTTS (0T 058) 0% 0SZT°9¢$ {05L7°81%) 0% 0$L°81% Bureld ~ V.14
0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% sossng oI OVIND - V1
0% 0% 0% 0% £0L°95TS £0L°95TSH 0% 2sed] sng VoI - VI
6¥598T° V8 (LE99r0TD) 0% LE9OLOTS (613°8HES) 0% 6L9°8FECS SOURUNUIRIA] AIUDASIL] - VLA
SIIpISgng Funesad() fesepa
6T 60F 618 {0L0°0LLE) ST TS ETE TSRS V6 TETS £8E°058°TS PP LIS TS SAIPIS(NS [BIIPA] UON] [BIOT,
0LF"R09°L1% (#98°61£%) £CTTR0° VS 1T T0V VS T10°€85% £RE0SR1S CLET IOV TS antiaAy XB], Al9001d
000°055% {005 LEID) 0% 005°LE1S {€E8°5PS) o CERCIS pung noneiodsuei] YsLeg
7805718 (0L TIED) 0% 0L TI€% {SE°v01%) 0% SETP01S XEJ, [330/[910H
ANTIASYH ﬁﬁo@u ] UON
(oapml suQ)
{seIpisqng 12007 9 9je4s ‘Riopod
|Gr8oz8exs) (698'5075) (eL8'LSB'EE) (0T7'€56'55) PO0°LES) (ELY'P00°ZS) (0L0°S86'1%) paImbay ApISqng/ITEfI0YS SuneRd) |
SPI'GLTEY (LOTr5%) 0TS°DHLS ORLP6LS (SETRID) L FEOOVIS 6L6'PITE SanuaAsy sune.RA( 1810,
S9C°6L1% ££7°¢8 CIE5 618 e (€8.9¢) Zo1°8% LY F1S AMUIAR SOTIBY RO
£91°791% 651318 F0L°85% DS OFS SFi'6$ _ S15°¢18 SWOIT] ISATAW]
LYO'TELS (zog'0zs) 0967914 791°€21% 65568 $60°19% SIUIAY SUISTLAPY
000°26% {00°cTS) 0% 060°ccs {£00°14) L99°1% ANTASY JSURIRIE ]/ VIV
6IETIES (1£T719) 666°€9% 0£8°11% (350°11%): €28 FIE £Y6'STS (19eRue)) sare, usuel] [ersdg
059°70.71% {971°02%) 187 S0F% 201 5T¥$ 6y B AR L0118 sore] pind wdussse
o SaNWAAYY sunerd(
LY6°666°9TS T09°15TS S6E°B6508 L6G6ELDS GLIISZTS 666°6FT°TH sesuadyy supered(y (ejo],
08 (£90°061%) £O07061% | 0% o 0% 0% uoneLaIdag
000°091% FITS TTSR1S CLOD0OFS - 066°6% PRELS £EL'€18 SFEIUSY puE Soseo]
66L°GELY {Le1v118) - | L80°662% | 0SEFRIS (S60°LEE) SPL86% 059°19% sastedX SHOaUE[[ISHN
Q00 TLES 90'9Z8 ~ | ¥R - 000°39% €188 vel'vig L199°TCS SOMII
8ETELLTS {65069L%) 2 IT00L% 60£°£89% (&7 LTS) 61E°6LTS 0L171TTS sarpddng 2p sTeLIRIEy
000°05TES 091°119) - 099°C16% = 0057958 (CT1PIS) SE9TOCS 005 /818 noneModsteL], PISBUDIIL]
60L°06.°1$ {7€<'6TY) 6T0° LIS | LAYLERS (930°67%) 71818 9T 6% S901AIBS
8LF0%9°1¢ 9/0°871% PG E6Ts 6191743 1ET° L% 805 E64 0FS OIS ANTIQerT pue Aifense)
£0L°19€° 118 079°L6ES e e 176 TFE 1S 166+9% $TETIETS YICLFP TS s1joudq 98UIL] PUE J0gE]
sasuadey sunersdQ
UNOWY “Jep lenyoy yobpng junowy “1ep fenyoy j2bpng
lsPBpng jenuuy [e10],
pano1ddy 5102 ajeq o} des ) JUOH JsLN)
610Z "€ YoIely popu3 poliad pUR UIUoK SUQ st 104
{en1oy 'sA Jabpng Bunjerado Jo Juswalelg
1 afizy

wa)sAg Jisuel] ealy [eudes



%0v PLFLLLOL $ @auejeq 61/} LIy USED Ydiep
%S¢ 966679 $ SAa1 [9,GZ papaaN - Yalep
6YS'TIVY S 1ssy Jado /ey 14
£78°0S2'T 3 |2301A1/1230H
000°0SS S punj uoiexodsuel) ysued
0L¥809°LT 3 ade|w xe|
SPT'6LT'E S diysiapui - shaa SuigeladQ
_ ‘Ajyauow uoynw g'zs Juidesane Juidesane mw._:p_ucmnxu_

‘PoIEISISpUN 21042194} 48 SBNUINBY 'I1EP 0] JedA 10 YIUOW JULIND Y] 40§ V14 WOl palsanbal SJUNOWE 10§ PIPI0I3I ANUBASI OUSIDIBYL o

"P21e}S19PUN 3J0J219Y] D1E SINUDIADY "JUNO0IE Y] Ul 3dUBjeq HPIJI B 330U [|ImM No,A *A[1I2410JUl JUNOIIE B|GRAISIB] 3} O} Pap10Ias

3uiaq s1 Suipuny siyy o swos sdeylad sieadde 31 199ys aduejeq uo paseg ‘punj uoljeliodsues) ysued auyy wWoiy ASUOL 1O XEJ [330UI /9101 10} 91Ep 0} BIA 10 YIUOL SI) PAPI0Ial SNUIASI OUSIIBY]L o

*138pnq aJe sjunowe ySnoylje a1ep 0} Je3A JO YIUOW JUSLIND DY} 10} ANUIABL HSUBIIBIRG /\YAY 10} PAPI0IAI BNUINBI ON o

‘peie1siapun aq pjnom ydiym poriad Juaind
3y} u1 pajioday Butaq Apusaind asuadxa syoedw Afiewnn siyy Alojuaaul Jo asn 10} spew Sulaq a4e SUORINPBI OuU INq PapL02al Sulaq aie saseydind A1ojuanul 189ys dduRjRq BY) JO MBIAZI R4 UO paseg

*YIUOW JUILIND BY] Ul PAPI0d3I U33q sey asuadxa uonenaldsp oN

[En12Y sA 198png 3uneaad Jo Juaudle)s YIIRA Jjea(] 03 SIJON

jemay sA jebpng BunesadQ jo Juswalels yadey yeiqg o} SejoN



S8Y'ETE

€91T22

gSt'1ee

610C =

LT9'E0T

£209TT

719'shT

99€'81¢

T62°L1C

L96'STT

vov'TIC

€99'€2C

¥2'81e

vZe'1ee

160°612

7585'91e

810C |

22Q

“AON

120

‘3das

“Bny

Aing

aunr

Aeny

dy

SLEI]

g4

‘uer

diysiopry

00005

000°00T
000°0ST
000002
000°05Z

00000€

W31SAS LIENBHL B30 Telidbd

oldd




sdo3s snq wajsAs (101 3yl fo %/ €2 T Wasaidal Yyoiym squjodawl pajnpayas 1o painspa i aaubwuofiad awii-uo 910N
92UBWIOS WI]-UQ %08 1984e] ,

%89°09

%9T°LY

%16°L9

6102 =

%0799

%8799

%E"99

%6°L9

%< L9

%069

%89

%8°L9

%C'L9

%98°59

%8€°99

%TL 99

8T0Z m

0ad

*AON

‘10

ydas

Sny

Apnr

aunr

Aepy

jdy

yoaen

"ga4

‘uer

9JUBWLIOLIDd dWiI]-UQ

%00°0

%00°0T
%00°0¢
%00°0€
%00°0%
%00°0S
%00°09
%00°0L
%00°08
%0006

%00°00T

21545 LISHEHL i3tk MELidk]

o8]




STTIS | SE00C 9'€LT |sdli] sng pa||@2ued 6T0C m
0°S8¢ 7'6EE 0'9Z¢ 0'91¢ 0'¥9¢ 06T 0'e6t 0'10¢ 0€e6 99 gove §'6¢¢ |sduL sng pajjsaue) §TOT W
et=Tq| "AON 00 1das Bny Anr aunr Aein |1ady yauaen ‘go4 “uef

suoije|j2oue) duiy sng

0

oot
00¢
00€
oov
00S

003 LURISHS Ml 3k bl

il




sSuipseog 000°00T 42d sjulejdwo) JawWw0IsN) 0z ULyl ss9| 198.e]

T'LS

L'TE

9'9¢

6T0Z =

LIy

€42

€'8¢E 9'9g 8'0€ T've 8'LE T°€€ 6'¢c 6'SC

L'ET

6'T€E

8T0Cc m

29g

*AON

10 11dag “Sny Apnr aunf Aejpn judy yosen

994

‘uer

(1)

= 0T

113

ov

0s

sSuipieog 000‘00T 424 swuiejdwor 1awoisn)

09

(UFLAS LISNHEL b3HH WU

olt]




S3|IN 000°00T 43d SIUBPIDY D|QEIUIASIJ §°T 1981,

L1 8's 71 610Z W
6T £€C €1 81 91 L1 L1 91T L0 €1 T'T S'E 810z m
T4 *AON 10 -3das ‘Sny Ang aunr Ae jady yauep ER| ‘uer 0
1
[4
€
1
S
9
L

S9|IIN 000°00T 43d S3UaPIIIY 3|geIuana.d

W3LEAS LISNHHL b3tk Telided

51d]




STv'v | T6L'T | TTE'E |s|[eD peoy '12g SI|IN UBSN 6T0C W
8LE'Y | TVE'S | TL6'S | TL8'v | €ES'S | 8799 | 8949 | 6S¢°L | T¥T'9 | STI'6 | T80T | TISV |SIieD peoy 194 Sa|IN UeaN 8107 m
230 "NON 120 1dasg | "8ny Anr aunr Aey ady | crewy ‘a4 ‘uer

s||ed peoy uaamiag S3|IAl UB3A]

0002

000y

0009

0008

00001

000zt

31545 LSNEAL H3HE THildd

albd




INSET Fagsnd

@ CATS Terminal

McHugh Rd

.j_'

mm— § Gus Young BRCC
10 Scenic Hwy/Southern University

=11 Northside Circulalor

= 12 Government Jefferson
= 14 Thomas Delpit

15 Blount Rd

mm=== 16 Capilol Park Shullle

== 17 Perkins Rd/Mall of Louisiana

North St

- | ‘s 18 LSU Cortana
MainSt

= = = 20 North Acadian Th

o Laurel St i

ic3 @ T8 29 Faiffield Ave/Cortana
@,

Baton Rouge

‘3 w22 \Winbourne Ave/Contana
Metropolitan Airport o

e Convention 8L

== 23 Foster Dr

\—— =
Hoopar Rl __——" s Town ot Morth Blvd s 41 Plank Rd /
= i Square 4
= 44 Florida Carlana

uisiana Ave mmmm 46 L'Auberge/Gardere/Cortana
Spain St || sy 47 Hightand Rd

S River Rd

%\'5 |

54 Aifine Hwy North/SU
- 57 Mall to Mall via Sherwood Forest
= 58 Coursey BlvdfO'Neal Ln/Cortana

mmmm 59 East Fiorida Bivd/O'Neal Ln
= 60 Medical Corridor

=

| ‘% s 70 Baker/SU/CATS Terminal

72 Fiorida Blvd Limited

— 1 W 80 Southem Shuttle Circulator

| Winbourn

\ S Choctaw Dr - = 5 S
AT g! =
5 B o B s
= ' P~
£ i e—
2 0
\él o /§’1
_— ] uy
#\igylea Dr % 79\3/’ (59]
a T
: 27E _
e - g A Ochsner
£ L g‘ ‘Medical
= -] Center
=)
_ SHa, B
—Efells ?"l
Y B

Loui§iana State
Universi

Mall of ehsner

Uouisiana = N h
~ wgMedical
[of | N
% N A Siegen N
"B@ Lane™, N, g
% Market . 3 N
N7 Place \?@

i

w A
57 Sk
g/ TER
__éq‘gJQ \jd"ﬂx__ \
7 S
- \-»
i, ~ ..\\
Mbonk g, s o < J
L'Auberge S S S T
Casino o s ] 5 \ 3 .

T e—— \les

Sources: NHGIS. ATLAS (LA), Census, ESRI
Date: 2/28/2019

CAPITAL AREA TAANSIT SYSTEM

CATS System Map




CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE

FINANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
APRIL 11, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard

MINUTES

The Finance and Executive Committee met on Thursday, April 11 2019, at 10:30
a.m. Present at the meeting were members Mark Bellue, Kahli Cohran, Erika
Green, and Antoinette Pierre. Also present were Bill Deville, Darrell Brown, Dwana
Williams, Creighton Abadie, and members of CATS staff.

Call to order and establishment of quorum

Mr. Bellue welcomed those assembled.

President’s Announcements

Mr. Bellue noted that the committee would be deferring Action Item #11 and
noted that there was a request to potentially review the spending authority

of the CEO. It was noted that this item would be discussed in May.

Mr. Bellue let the committee know that there would be no action taken on
the item related the New Age Industries contract.

Safety Moment

Mr. Darrell Brown shared the safety moment for Ms. Simpson that centered
on effective practices in bus transit safety.

Executive Report and Financials
Mr. Deville introduced the new Human Resources Manager Jim Fight and

shared that Mr. Fight began March 20™. Mr. Fight spoke to the committee
members and let them know he was developing a strategy to grow the



agency’s network to attract qualified candidates for vacant positions and
that he would share the strategy with the board once it is complete.

Ms. Dwana Williams updated the committee on the performance measures.
She let the members know that there are currently 122 active operators.

Ms. Williams shared that there are currently eight routes impacted by
ongoing construction around the city. She let the members know there was

a map in the packets highlighting how much of the system is affected by '
construction.

She noted that CATS had 213,485 passenger trips in March and the
percentage of on-time trips was 60.68%.

Mr. Abadie made several inquiries on behalf of the board. He asked about
the effect the SiP plan had on the on-time performance (OTP) and inquired
about the SIP schedules. Ms. Williams noted that the agency is working to
address any issues for the next run cut scheduled for June. She shared
that there are six routes with schedule issues that need to be addressed.
Mr. Abadie also inquired as to the training efforts that were undertaken
prior to the SIP implementation. :

There was discussion among the committee members and staff regarding
the routes affected by construction versus the routes not affected and
whether there was a marked improvement in OTP for those unaffected
routes. There was discussion regarding the plan to improve the OTP. The
members expressed interest in seeing the plan of action to improve OTP
when it has been formulated. There was discussion of altering routes
and/or schedules prior to the next run cut in June and the members asked
to be kept abreast of coming changes and improvements.

There was a suggestion to have one person at CATS designated as a point
person for construction contacts to be able to communicate with the City-
Parish and stay informed on projects throughout the city.

Ms. Williams completed her report and noted that there were 1.7
preventable accidents per 100,000 miles. She shared that there were 511
trips cancelled in March of the approximately 35,000 trips for the month.
The percentage of on-time trips was 60.68%. There were 57.1 complaints
per 100,000 miles in March. Ms. Williams shared that there were 4,415 miles
between road calls for the month.

There was discussion related to the customer complaints and it was
suggested that the Community Relations Committee meet more than
quarterly to take a more in-depth look at complaints and determine how to
address, correct, and diminish the number of complaints each month.




Mr. Deville noted that CATS received word from Stephen Whitlow of
Merakey Gateway noting that Kevin Roig, Deputy Chief of Staff of
Communications for Congressman Garret Graves, that the Congressman
would like to continue the momentum on the paratransit/Uber on-demand
model used in Boston and other areas for Baton Rouge. CATS has
scheduled a meeting with MV for an update on their Dallas program as a
possible template here.

Mr. Bellue had to leave the meeting and CATS Board Vice President Erika
Green presided over the remainder of the meeting.

Mr. Deville share that CATS has partnered with TransLoc to determine the
best zone(s) in which to provide a microtransit pilot project. TransLoc met
with CATS several times to determine potential zones and has presented a
simulation of the City of Baker and the area surrounding Southern
University and the Baton Rouge Airport. The study has presented options
from two on-demand multi-passenger vehicles to six multi-passenger
vehicles based on simulated trips.

Mr. Deville introduced Ravi Ponnapureddy of CRPC to discuss the vanpool
project spearheaded by the MPO. Mr. Ponnapureddy shared that CRPC is
conducting a regional vanpool study as part of its three year Travel
Demand Management (TDM) project; the study is in its early stages. CRPC
has approached CATS to gauge the agency’s interest to be the
operator/manager of the vanpool program. Based on recent discussions,
the vanpool study working group recommends a subsidy of
$400/month/van amounting to an annual subsidy of $4,800/van. The cost is
scalable to the number of vans included in the program. CATS and CRPC
are working to identify funding sources for implementing the program.
CRPC’s Urban System, CATS 5307, and other DOTD funds are some of the
potential sources being considered.

There was discussion regarding the commitment made by CATS to this
point and what obligations the agency is bound to complete. Mr. Deville
and Mr. Ponnapureddy noted that CMAQ funds could be used for the
project and that CATS has not promised to be the operator of the project.
CRPC would like to see CATS in charge of the program and funding the
program. There was discussion as to whether there is a sufficient demand
in the area to have CATS undertake such a project.

Mr. Ponnapureddy updated the committee members on the Baker park-and-
ride facility. He noted that CRPC is facilitating the relationship between the
City of Baker Mayor Waites and CATS. He shared that the project began
with the Baker Mayor’s vision to build a transportation center along Plank
Road to address traffic coming through Baker. CRPC is spearheading the




project and providing technical assistance to improve the regional mobility
and support Mayor Waites’ vision.

The first step of the project is to conduct a feasibility study to identify a
location along Plank Road to support the implementation and to develop a
transit facility site plan with mixed-use/transit supportive development.

To this point, CRPC has awarded a contract to WHLC to perform the site
study. The cost of the study is $60,000 to be paid with a CRPC grant and
CATS providing the $12,000 local match.

Phase One of the project, which is design, environmental clearance, and
construction would be paid with CRPC funds and potential land acquisition
as local match. If the land purchase is not used as local match, CATS and
the City of Baker could share the cost of the required match.

Mr. Garrick Rose noted that Planning is preparing the CATS FY10 grants
applications and refining CATS Program of Projects. The grants staff is
continuing to prepare information requested by the FTA for the triennial
review process. Planning met with the DDD to review the downtown trolley
service and consider adjustments to the trolley route. He noted that DDD
would assist in facilitating discussions for a downtown transit center.
Planning is preparing a Three Year Program of Projects for inclusion in the
June 2019 TIP/STIP.

In Facilities Planning, Mr. Deville let the board know that CATS is
anticipating FTA’s approval of the 2018 formula funding.

Legal counsel is working with LSU officials to complete the sale of the land
for the North Baton Rouge property.

Mr. Deville shared that the Kelly Construction Group has submitted all
required documentation to the Department of Public Works and is awaiting
the construction permit. It is expected that the permit will be available on
April 15", The current service at Cortana Mall will relocate its operation to
the mall side of the Cortana Place and this is scheduled to begin at the end
of the month subject to the contractor’s construction schedule.

Construction is scheduled to be complete by July 31%. The anticipated total
cost of the construction project is $560,000; $31,000 has been spent to
date. This will be paid with local funds. The anticipated cost of the total
project, including amenities, is $768,000.

An RFQ solicitation for custom shelters, signage, and an information kiosk
for the transit center is currently underway and the bids are due by April
17", The anticipated cost of the shelters, signage, and kiosk is estimated at




VL.

$300,000; grant funds of $240,000 have been identified, with a local match
of $60,000.

When asked the status of the monthly financials, Mr. Deville indicated that
Ms. Dorsa of Postiethwaite & Netterville was working to complete the
financials. Mr. Devilie hopes to have them to present to the board at the
April board meeting.

Board Treasurer Kahli Cohran shared that he met with the auditors earlier
in the week and that CATS contracted with a financial consultant to assist
the department. Mr. Deville shared that the consultant, Victoria Harris, is a
City-Parish retiree who will be contracted for up to 90 days.

Recommend renewal and amendment of customer satisfaction surveys
with ETC Institute

Ms. Amie McNaylor let the committee members know that CATS is
completing the first year of the contract and there is a one-year renewal
option. The first year of the contract has been successful in reengaging the
customers and determining what works with the system and where there
are opportunities for improvement.

ETC conducted satisfaction surveys in the spring and fall of 2018 and CATS
staff would like to continue reaching out to customers on a semiannual
basis. Additionally, the agency would like to amend the contract to include
a survey aimed at non-riders and stakeholders in the community. This
survey would be conducted by ETC with assistance from CATS and would
help the agency learn areas of improvement for non-riders.

The cost of adding a third survey to the contract would be $32,215, which
bring the total cost of the contract for year two to $103,375.

Mr. Cohran moved to recommend the full board renew and amend the
contract with ETC Institute for customer satisfaction surveys and Ms.
Pierre seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public comment and there
was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend approval to waive fares on April 25, 2019 for National Transit
Get On Board Day

Ms. McNaylor shared that APTA has sponsored a national day to
encourage people across the country to try transit. In the past, this day has
been known as “Dump the Pump,” but this year it has been rebranded as
“Get On Board".




VIL.

VIl

Ms. McNaylor noted that many transit properties around the country are
participating and CATS would like to join the event and waive fares for the
day across the system. On the same date in 2018, CATS generated
$4,283.71 in farebox revenue.

If approved, the Communications Department will produce handouts with
transit facts and publish a page on the CATS website to premote the event.

Ms. Pierre moved to recommend the full board approve waiving fares on
April 25" for National Transit Get On Board Day and Ms. Green seconded
the motion. Ms. Green invited public comment and there was none. The
motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend approval of CATS Information Technology Backup Policy

Ms. Jeanette Eckert shared that this policy defines the backup policy for
CATS computers. In addition to computer files, backup services will include
CATS servers. Ms. Eckert noted that the backups are tested at least twice
annually.

Ms. McNaylor le the committee know that the policy, along with the others
presented today, were discussed at the Technical, Policies, and Practices
Committee meeting; no official recommendation was given as there was no
quorum, but the members present were in agreement that the policies
should be recommended.

Mr. Cohran moved to recommend the full board approve the CATS
Information Technology Backup Policy and Ms. Pierre seconded the
motion. Ms. Green invited public comment and there was none. The motion
passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend approval of CATS Password Policy

Ms. Eckert shared that this policy seeks to establish a standard for creation
of strong passwords, the protection of passwords, and the frequency of
change.

Ms. Green moved to recommend the full board approve the CATS Password
Policy. Mr. Cohran seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public
comment and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

Recommend approval of CATS Passenger Code of Conduct and Banning
Passenger Policy




XL

XIl.

Ms. McNaylor informed the committee that this policy mainly codified
procedures that were already in place with the agency. The passenger code
of conduct was implemented in 2015 in conjunction with the Community
Relations Committee at that time. The rules to remember when riding have
been shared with the passengers and are posted on interior ads in the
CATS vehicles.

The process to suspend or ban passengers from CATS property and
vehicles has been captured in this policy with input from the Operations,
Customer Care, and Risk & Safety Departments.

There was an inquiry by a customer and a subsequent Freedom of
Information Act request that led to the compilation of the policy.

The policy has been vetted by the internal Executive Policy Committee and
has been reviewed by legal counsel.

Ms. Green moved to recommend the full board approve the CATS
Passenger Code of Conduct and Banning Passenger Policy and Ms. Pierre
seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public comment and there was
none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend award of antifreeze services contract to Miguez Fuel

Mr. Darrell Brown informed the committee members that this contract will
be the second contract with Miguez Fuel, which is the reason to bring it
before the board.

CATS advertised an Invitation to Bid (ITB) for motor oil and antifreeze and
Miguez Fuel was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. The cost
for the antifreeze will be $15,000.

Ms. Green moved to recommend the full board award the antifreeze
services contract to Miguez Fuel. Mr. Cohran seconded the motion. Ms.
Green invited public comment and there was none. The motion passed
unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend award of professional services contract to Pierlott &
Associates

Ms. Green noted that this item was being deferred.

Recommend approval to declare five Gillig buses and one Ford Cutaway
van and parts as surplus

Mr. James Godwin noted that these vehicles have been retired with the
addition of the new Gillig buses that were put into service earlier this year.




As FTA assets, the board must approve the agency getting rid of them and
their parts as surplus.

Ms. Pierre moved to recommend the full board approve the following
resolution to declare five Gillig buses and one Ford Cutaway van and parts
as surplus and Ms. Green seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public
comment and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT
SYSTEM DECLARING CERTAIN ITEMS AS SURPLUS PROPERTY

BE IT RESOLVED that the following Gillig buses and Ford Cutaway van and parts
are declared surplus property and that the CEO of Capital Area Transit System
(CATS) is authorized to have the buses and parts disposed of as he deems fit:

Two (2) 1997 Gillig Phantoms
Once {1) 1998 Gillig Phantom
Two (2) 2001 Gillig Phantoms
One (1) 2013 Ford Glaval Cutaway

Description
Vehicle Year Length — CATS VIN Date in
No. Vehicle Service

104 1997 35 foot Gillig 15GCB211XV1088205 | 4/28/1997
Phantom
Ceoach

114 1997 35 foot Gillig 15GCB2117vV1088324 5/5(1997
Phantom
Coach

122 1998 35 foot Gillig 15GCB2116W1088516 | 4/18/19%8
Phantom
Coach

253 2001 35 foot Gillig 15GCB271811111319 | 11/8/2014
Phantom
Coach

254 2001 35 foot Gillig 15GCB271611111321 11/8/2014
Phantom
Coach

255 2001 35 foot Gillig 15GCB271811111322 11/8/2014
Phantom
Coach

90 2013 24 foot Ford Glaval | 1TFDGF5GTODEA24800 | 4/11/2013
Cutaway

XIlll. Recommend authorization to add Dwana Williams as signatory on behalf of
CATS for all Whitney/Hancock Bank accounts and recommend




XIV.

authorization for the CEO to execute all documents required by
Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes

It was noted that CATS requires two signatures on all checks made by the
agency and since the departure of Mr. Goldman, there have been only three
approved sighatories. It is helpful to have four approved in the event
someone is not available when checks need to be signed. It was noted that
the three current signatories are Mr. Deville, Ms. Rhonda Williams, and Ms.
Eckert.

Mr. Cohran moved to recommend the full board authorize adding add
Dwana Williams as signatory on behalf of CATS for all Whitney/Hancock
Bank accounts and authorize the CEO to execute all documents required
by Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes and Ms. Green
seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public comment and there was
none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Adopt and levy the ad valorem tax millage rate of 10.6 mills for the City of
Baton Rouge for the year 2019

Mr. Abadie read the following resolution into the record:

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AND LEVY TAX MILLAGE RATE OF
10.6 MILLS FOR THE CITY OF BATON ROUGE FOR THE YEAR 2019

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Capital Area Transit
System that the following millage(s) are hereby levied on the 2019 tax roli
on all property subject to taxation in the City of Baton Rouge by Capital
Area Transit System:

' MILLAGE
Capital Area Transit System tax in the City of Baton Rouge 10.6 mills

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper administrative officials of the
Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, be and they are hereby
empowered, authorized, and directed to spread said taxes, as hereinabove
set forth, upon the assessment roll of said Parish for the year 2019, and to
make the collection of the taxes imposed for and on behalf of the taxing
authority, according to law, and that the taxes herein levied shall become a
permanent lien and privilege on all property subject to taxation as herein
set forth, and collection thereof shall be enforceable in the manner
provided by law.

Ms. Green moved to recommend the full board adopt and levy the ad
valorem tax millage rate of 10.6 mills for the City of Baton Rouge for the
year 2019 and Mr. Cohran seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public




XV.

comment and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

Adopt and levy the ad valorem tax miilage rate of 10.6 mills for the City of
Baker for the year 2019

Mr. Abadie read the following resultion into the record:

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AND LEVY TAX MILLAGE RATE OF
10.6 MILLS FOR THE CITY OF BAKER FOR THE YEAR 2019

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Capital Area Transit
System that the following millage(s) are hereby levied on the 2019 tax roll
on all property subject to taxation in the City of Baker by Capital Area
Transit System:

MILLAGE
Capital Area Transit System tax in the City of Baker 10.6 mills

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper administrative officials of the
Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, be and they are hereby
empowered, authorized, and directed to spread said taxes, as hereinabove
set forth, upon the assessment roll of said Parish for the year 2019, and to
make the collection of the taxes imposed for and on behalf of the taxing
authority, according to law, and that the taxes herein levied shall become a
permanent lien and privilege on all property subject to taxation as herein
set forth, and collection thereof shall be enforceable in the manner
provided by law.

Ms. Green moved to recommend the full board adopt and levy the ad
valorem tax millage rate of 10.6 mills for the City of Baton Rouge for the
year 2019 and Ms. Pierre seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public
comment and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




CATS

CAPITAL RREA TRRNSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
TECHNICAL, POLICIES, AND
PRACTICES COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
APRIL 4, 2019
Capital Area Transit System
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA

MINUTES

The Technical, Policies, and Practices Committee met on Thursday, April 4, 2019, at
10:30 a.m. Present at the meeting was Peter Breaux and Antoinette Pierre listened via
phone. Also present were Bill Deville and members of CATS staff.

Recommend approval of CATS Information Technology Backup Policy
Dr. Breaux thanked those assembled for coming.

Ms. Jeanette Eckert shared that the purpose of the policy is to ensure that all
CATS computers are backed up as necessary.

Ms. Eckert let the members know that the IT Department has plans in place to
also backup the CATS servers.

The backup practice will be tested at least twice annually.

Although there was no quorum, the members agreed the plan should be
recommended to the F&E Committee for approval.

Recommend approval of CATS Password Policy

Ms. Eckert shared that the purpose of the policy is to ensure the CATS
employees have strong and secure passwords that are changed frequency for
security.

Although there was no quorum, the members agreed the plan should be
recommended to the F&E Committee for approval.



Recommend approval of CATS Passenger Code of Conduct and Banning
Passenger Policy

The purpose of the policy is to codify procedures we have had in place for some
time. The policy provides the guidelines for safe and appropriate behavior by
passengers on CATS vehicles and property.

The passenger code of conduct was created in 2015 and was presented to the
Community Relations Committee at that time. The passengers were made aware
of the rules when they were created and implemented, and there are still interior
ads in the vehicles detailing the rules to remember.

The agency has had procedures in place to either suspend or ban passengers
when their behavior warrants such actions, but they have not been gathered in
one document to this point.

The agency had a request from a customer and a subsequent Freedom of
Information Act request that led to the creation of the policy to collect the
procedures in one document.

The policy details the procedure that passengers can follow to appeal their
suspension or expulsion from the system and the steps to take to request

reentry.

The policy was written with coordination by the Operations, Customer Care, and
Safety Departments. It was vetted by the internal executive policy committee
and has been reviewed by Mr. Abadie.

Although there was no quorum, the members agreed the plan should be
recommended to the F&E Committee for approval.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE

PLANNING COMMITTEE

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
APRIL 12, 2019
10:30 a.m.

5700 Florida Boulevard,
Ninth Floor Conference Room
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70806

MINUTES

The Planning Committee met on Friday, April 12, 2019, at 10:30 a.m. Present at the
meeting were members Kevin O’Gorman, Mark Bellue, and Jim Brandt. Also present
were Bill Deville, Garrick Rose, and members of CATS staff.

Hub updates

Regarding the North Baton Rouge Transit Center, Mr. Deville let the committee
know that CATS is anticipating FTA’s approval of the 2018 formula funding. He
shared that CATS legal counsel is working with LSU officials to complete certain
requirements prior to executing the purchase agreement.

It was noted that for the East Baton Rouge Cortana Transit Center, the Kelly
Construction Group has submitted all required documentation to the
Department of Public Works and it awaiting the construction permit. There is a
meeting on April 15" and it is expected that the permit will be provided at that
time. The current service at Cortana will relocate to the mall side of Cortana
Place so that construction may begin. The construction is slated to be
completed by July 31%,

The anticipated total cost of the construction project is $560,000; $31,000 has
been spent to date. The anticipated cost of the total project, including amenities,
is $768,000.

An RFQ solicitation for custom shelters, signage, and an information kiosk for
the transit center is currently underway. The projected cost of the shelters,
signage, and kiosk is $300,000. Grant funds of $240,000 have been identified

with a local match of $60,000.



The downtown transit center is being considered as several mini sites rather
than one larger center. It was noted that recent discussions with DOTD officials
and DPW officials continue in an effort to identify suitable downtown sites to
accommodate the operations. The DDD has indicated their willingness to assist
in facilitating discussions for the smaller sites.

Plank Road BRT update

The design and engineering phase is being conducted by the SJB Group and
began November 1, 2018. The cost to date is $67,400 in local funds.

The construction phase has not yet been bid. The anticipated cost of the
construction phase is $1,700,000. The grant funds allocation is $1,360,000; the
required local match is $340,000.

The design/engineering and construction phases are expected to be completed
between the end of 2019 and the beginning of 2020, depending on the NEPA
progress.

The total project is expected to cost around $900,000. $720,000 in grant funds
has been identified with a local match requirement of $180,000.

Plank-Nicholson BRT update

A preliminary assessment of the BRT stations has been completed by SJB and it
focused on right-of-way limitations, ADA compliance, site evaluations, and the
development of conceptual design plans. The assessment has confirmed the
suitability and acceptability of the BRT station locations and allows the design
phase to advance to the utility phase. The sites deemed unacceptable because
of traffic issues, ADA compliance, space limitations, etc. have been replaced
with alternative sites.

CATS and the City-Parish are currently in discussions to review additional cost
requests to cover the NEPA study for the Plank Phase One and Plank-Nicholson
Phase Two projects. The NEPA process is necessary as part of the grant
process.

Once additional funding has been approved, CATS and HNTB will prepare
support documentation to secure environmental clearance for the Plank and
Plank-Nicholson projects. A Categorical Exclusion is anticipated permitting both
projects to proceed. HNTB has generated renderings illustrating the BRT station
design proposed at Chippewa and LSU. Though preliminary, these renderings
illustrate the context and settling for these planned transit improvements.

The local funds allocated to the project to this point are $440,000; CATS and the
City-Parish have split the cost at $220,000 each. The City-Parish is completing
the Capital Improvement Grant (CiG), BUILD grant, and other competitive grants
for the project.




Iv.

HNTB met with some of the CATS board members and staff to discuss the
results of the Redefinition Study and next steps of the Plank-Nicholson BRT
Corridor. Those steps include HNTB leading tasks to advance the project,
including the NEPA documentation, conceptual design and development of an
application to the FTA’s BUILD grant {Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage
Development) instead of the Small Starts Program. HNTB is working closely with
the City-Parish, Redevelopment Authority, DOTD, and CATS regarding the
funding resources and what now appears to be a better and possibly lower cost
option.

It has been determined that there is not enough projected ridership along Plank
Road to compete for the Small Starts submission to be successful. The BUILD
project would be more likely a $15-20 million task as opposed to the $50 million
Small Starts undertaking. The proposed transit amenities are not being
diminished with the transition to the BUILD grant application. It is still possible
that local match can be found in the road transfer program and from MoveBR.

Two Year Capital Budget

Mr. Rose let the members know that he is currently working to produce the
Three Year Program of Projects (POP) required for the TIP/STIP. The TIP/STIP will
be advertised by CRPC and adopted in June. Once they are adopted, the CATS
board will have the opportunity to determine which projects to pursue.

The first two years of the POP will populate the Two Year Capital Budget. There
was discussion regarding the concern of the committee members that they have
been requesting the capital budget for more than four months and to this point
have not seen one.

It was requested that the Board be presented with a list of projects, their
estimated amounts, and the timelines for the projects.

Baker Park and Ride update

Mr. Deville shared that CRPC is spearheading the project and that no site has
been determined to this point. The budget is not known at this point and the
Mayor of Baker may have funds to contribute to the project.

$60,000 is being spent to fund a site feasibility study. CRPC is using a grant to
pay for the study and CATS is paying the $12,000 for the local match. The study
is considering three sites that can best accommodate the facility and how CATS

can be served.

There was a question of whether Zachary residents could benefit from the
facility, and it is a facility that can potentially be used by residents of multiple
areas.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




puewaq % UORduISGNS % m

| Ayanonpoldd (Hdd) 1noH Jad sia8uassed

13quianon 1aqo1Q Jagquwaidag 1sn3ny Aing aunf Aey

%0°SL

%0°08

%0°58

%0'06

%0°56

- %0°86 #0'86

eSS ———————— L — . . - _—— - %0001
(dLO) @2ueWIO)IRd BWI]-UD



MmoysoNm  suonpe|@aue) sequinNm sduj paldidwod m  sdul pajnpayIS m

80¢€ 18¢ 01€ (474 LTC ove 65T €EC SS¢ 66¢ oy MOUSONm
0e9 €8s 859 L9 w9 0z9 8€9 S0S 059 €99 08S suofiej|asue) JIquInN =
LE49 £90L T6SL £r99 T60L riL 899 €198 9IvL 16%9 v661 sduy pajajdwol m
SL9L 9Z6L 6vZ8 YIEL SELL 19e8 TEe2L 8116 9908 09sL LA sdi] pajnpayds m
Asenigaq Asenuer Jsquslag J2qWBA0N Jagopo Jaquardas 1sn8ny
1 1] ] 11 L) j | W iy I ot 0

000t

0002

000t

ooot

0005

VLSS 509

000L

VISL 160 1€2L
SELL  TYL 0008
9Z6L
0006
8116
0000T

Moys oN/pajaaue)/paiajdwo) *sa sdi] pajnpayas



2> S 7 x.ro.mr o .,..o.snu.
& %%e & Y %% &S
——— e e e {}
— - N—— — — — - — — - N
Sl
g
o 8
ot
[48
e vt
el ! B - ST~ B~ S o
o B . . m._”
) S P
sjulejdwo) # sl|eJ peoy #

SIELIPIYM [BIOL ~  SIBPIY [BIOL W

youep Atenigaq Aienuer Jaquaseg 1aquianoN 1300120 Jaqueldss 1sn8ny Apnr aunf Ay

000T
0007
000§

0oot

000s

S0cs

ooos

000£

L069

LIEL

CLvL
0S8L 9908 7217
LLVS 06178 0006

0008
6L6L

1526 0000T



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

William “Bill” Deville
CATS CEO

breats.com

CHTS

CRPITRL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

April 1, 2019
MEMORANDUM
To: CATS Board of Commissioners
From: William “Bill" Deville CATS CEO
Subject: ETC Institute (Customer Satisfaction Surveys)

One (1) Year Renewal and Extension from May 1, 2019 through
April 30, 2020 (based on CATS Original RFP Solicitation #2018-
CustSurvey-009)

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this summary is to briefly document the reasons supporting
renewal of the referenced contract with ETC Institute for an additional twelve
(12) months. It is also the intention of CATS to amend the contract to include
two additional tasks and increase the funding for these tasks by $32,215 for a
total contract amount of $103,375.

BACKGROUND:

The Customer Satisfaction Survey contract was awarded to ETC Institute
through an RFP competitive process. CATS received three (3) proposals, and
through an evaluation process, ETC Institute was selected as the contractor
that met the criteria outlined in the RFP, consistent with CATS price, needs and
goals. The original contract was effective for an initial term of twelve (12)
months with an additional twelve (12) month renewal option available for a total
of two (2) years.

CONTRACT JUSTIFICATION:

The current CATS assigned Project Manager has determined that it is in the
best interest of CATS to renew and amend the current contract by adding two
additional tasks (Non-Rider Survey and Transit Stakeholder Survey) to the
Scope of Work along with remuneration of $32,215 for those additional tasks
for the duration amended contract.

CONTRACT RENEWAL RECOMMENDATIONS:

Over the past twelve (12) months, ETC Institute has demonstrated their ability,
expertise and knowledge in providing customer satisfaction surveys. It has
been determined to be in the best interest of CATS to recommend the renewal
of this contract for a period of twelve (12) months from May 1, 2019 through
April 30, 2020 as well as the inclusion of the additional tasks.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

Lisa Sanchez
Procurement Manager
Isanchez@brcats.com

hreats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEMORANDUM

To: Bill Deville, CATS CEO

From: Lisa Sanchez, Procurement Manager

Date: April 5, 2019

Re: Motor Oil and Antifreeze — Solicitation #2019-OilProducts-001

Recommendation for Contract Awards

Purpose: The purpose of this report is to document CATS procurement procedures and
to recommend a contract award to those vendors who submitted bids to CATS in response
to the solicitation referenced above for Motor Oil and Antifreeze.

Invitation to Bid (ITB) and Public Bid Opening: CATS publicly advertised an Invitation to
Bid (ITB) on February 21 and 28, 2019 in the Baton Rouge Advocate (official journal)
and in the Weekly Press on February 28, 2019. The ITB was posted on CATS website
and written announcements were sent via email to numerous oil supply vendors from CATS
vendor data base. CATS allowed time for questions and approved equals through March
7,2019.

The ITB requested vendors to submit bid prices at a firm fixed price for a period through
December 31, 2019. The contract can be renewed for one (1) year if both parties mutually
agree, at the same prices, terms and conditions.

A public bid opening was held on March 20, 2019 at 10 am at CATS main office (2250
Florida). CATS received bids from six vendors, (1) Retif Oil & Fuel, (2) Petro Choice, (3)
Miguez Fuel, (4) Lard Oil, (5) Safety-Kleen and (6) Sun Coast Resources. The bid price for
each product was read out loud and was recorded by CATS on the bid tab sheet.

Procurement and Maintenance Review: Procurement determined that the bids submitted
contained the required documents. CATS Maintenance Director reviewed the products bid
to ensure the quality of the products and specifications were met. The following
determinations were made:

¢ Antifreeze: Miguez Fuel was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.
Total contract amount: $15,000

e Motor Oil: Petro Choice was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.
Total contract amount: $34,620

Recommendation: CATS Maintenance Director recommends award of contracts as per
above and CATS Procurement Office concurs with this recommendation. See Tab Sheet
attached.

CCl
James Godwin, Maintenance Director
Bill Deville, CEO
Darrell Brown, CAO



GET ONBOARD DAY

INCREASING SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC TRANSIT
AND MOBILIZING ADVOCATES

For the past year, APTA’s Marketing & Communications Commiittes has explored opportunities
to create a new National Awarehess and Advocacy Day to generate awareness and increase support
for public transportation among the general public (fiders and non-riders), elected officials and
stakeholders.

The day will feature activities by APTA members and stakeholdets in their communities. We will
also mobilize the Voices for Public Transit advocates across the country,

A task force comprised of a cross-section of comuittee members was formed to help guide the
process, and reviewed previous days, such as Dump the Pump Day, Stand Up for Transportation
and Try Transit Day, Additionally, the task force discussed it with APTA’s Research,
Communications and Advocacy (RCA) Council for input. The RCA Council recommended that
the day coincide with a Congressional recess.

After several mestings, the task force honed in on key message points, target audiences and timing,
A list of prospective names for the new day was also developed, From there, message testing was
conducted on several possible names. More than 1,000 members of the general public from across
the county participated in the message testing. :

At the conclusion, one name — Get on Board Day — outperformed the others and resonated with
participants. When we drilled down deeper, regardless of audience (riders/non-riders, young/old,
male/female, region of country, suburban/urban/rural, ethnicity, household income, etc.), Get on
Board Day remains the top choice.

flexible and allows the md&ygstry and members to adapt
) 3 afdiand Support Transit, Get oniBoard for Increased Fun ling.
for Transit, etc. A toolkit will be developed with messages and miaterials that can be customized,

and we will also partner with stakeholders and mobilize the Voiees for Public Transit advocates.

B

Get on Board Day 2019 will be held on Thursday, April 25, during the congressional spring break
when elected officials are back in th&irdistricts. Eac

The Matketing and Communications Comitnittee is enlisting all members of APTA to participate

and plan activities and make Get on Board Day successful so that our public transit message is
heard loud and clear,

495




Participating Agencies and Organizations
*as of April 5, 2019

AASHTO

ABQ Ride

Access Services

AECOM

Al Engel Consulting

Alameda-Contra Costa Transit

AlphaVu

ALSTOM

Amsted Rail

Antelope Valley Transit Authority

Arizona Transit Association

Atomic City Transit

BAE Systems

Birmingham-Jefferson County Transit
Authority

Bi-State Development Agency

Big Blue Bus

Blacksburg Transit

Blue Water Area Transit

Broward County Transit

CALSTART

Cape Cod Regional Transit Authority

Capital District Transportation Authority

Capital Metro

Center for Urban Transportation
Research

Central Midlands Regional Transit
Authority

Central Pennsylvania Transportation
Authority (dba rabbittransit)

Centre Area Transportation Authority

CH2M

Champaign-Urbana Mass Transit District

Charleston Area Transportation Study

Charlotte Area Transit System

Chatham Area Transit Authority

Chicago Transit Authority

Citizens for Progressive Transit

City of Albuguerque Transit Department

City of Dubugue The Jule Transit +
Parking

City of Jackson
City of Phoenix Public Transportation
Department
Clas-Tran
City of Phoenix Public Transit
Connect Transit
Corpus Christi Regional Transportation
Authority
County of Lebanon Transit Authority
C-TRAN
Dallas Area Rapid Transit
Delaware Transit Corp./DART First State
Denton County Transportation
Authority
Des Moines Area Regional Transit
Authority
District Department of Transportation
Ecolane
East Japan Railway Company
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
EMBARK
Erie Metropolitan Transit Authority :
Federal Transit Administration
Flint Mass Transportation Authority 5
Foothill Transit
Fort Bend County Public Transportation
Fort Wayne Public Transportation
Corporation/Citilink
Friends of Clayton Transit
Gold Coast Transit
Golden Empire Transit District
GoRaleigh
GoTriangle
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority
Greater Dayton Regional Transit
Authority
Greater Lafayette Public Transportation
Corporation
Greater Pecria Mass Transit District
Greater Portland Transit District




Rock Region METRO

Rockford Mass Transit District

Sacramento Regional Transit District

Salem Area Mass Transit District

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District

San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency

San Joaguin Regional Transit District

Santa Clara Valley Transportation
Authority

Schuylkill County Transportation
Authority

Seattle Department of Transportation

Smart Trips

Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit

South Florida Commuter Services

South Florida Regional Transportation
Authority

Southeast Idaho Council of
Governments

Southeastern Pennsylvania
Transportation Authority

Southwest Ohio Regional Transit
Authority

SouthWest Transit

Sportran

Stantec

Stark Area Regional Transit Authority

StarMetro - City of Tallahassee

StormCenter Communicaticns

Suburban Mobility Authority for
Regional Transportation

SunLine Transit Agency

Swiftly

SYSTRA

Tampa Bay Area Regional
Transportation Authority

The Rapid

Torrance Transit System

Transit Authority of Northern Kentucky

Transit Authority of River City

Transit Systems Engineering

TransLink

Tri-County Metropolitan Transportation
District of Oregon

Tri Delta Transit

Trinity Metro

Tri-River Transit

Tri-State Transit Authority

University of Arizona Parking &
Transportation Services

University of lowa

Utah Transit Authority

Valley Metro

Via Metropolitan Transit

Virginia Railway Express

Washington Metropolitan Area Transit
Authority

Washington State Department of
Transportation

Williamsburg Area Transit Authority




FOR PUBLIC TRANSIT

APRIL 25, 2019

Home values in areas located near high
frequency public transit performed
42% BETTER THAN OTHER AREAS.

Every segment of American
society — individuals, families,
communities and husinesses all

benefit from public transportation.

A household can S
save $10,000 each

00 each  §f SAVE
year by taking public $10,000

transit and living

[ X ] o0
with one less car. e

dom&h’bd fou b whad maters
brcats.com B3 @CATSBR W @BTRCATS

CHTS

CAPITAL RRER TRANSIT SYSTEM




Every $1 invested in public transit
generates $4 in economic returns.

Every $1 BILLION invested in
public transit support and
creates more than 50,000 JOBS.

10x

SAFER

Traveling by public transit is
10x safer per mile than
traveling by automobhile.

EACH WEEKDAY, PEOPLE BOARD
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

34 MILLION TIMES



CATS

CAPITAL BREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters,

April 4, 2019

~ bJ,
To: Dwana Williams, Chief Operating Officer W
From: James Godwin, Directar of Maintenance 'Sk&’ .
Subject: Removal of buses from active service

This is the list of buses that need to be removed from active service. The vehicles have reached their
useful life, some parts are difficult to find for repairs and the safety for the riding public could be
compromised. | would like present the list to the next Board of Commissioners’ meeting for a motion to
remove the vehicles from service and dispose them in the proper manner underlined in the CATS
disposal policy. | would like to dispose of all the parts for those vehicles with the vehicle ,except the
parts that can be returned for credit.

The breakdown of the fleets to be removed is as follows;
Two (2) 1997 Gillig Phantoms
One (1) 1998 Gillig Phantom
Two (2) 2001 Gillig Phantom

One (1) 2013 Ford Glaval Cutaway

Vehicle Description - CATS Date in
No. Year Length | Vehicle VIN Service

104 1997 | 35 ft. Gillig Phantom Coach 15GCB211XV1088205 4/28/1997

114 1997 | 35 ft. Gillig Phantom Coach 15GCB2117Vv1088324 5/5/1997

122 1998 | 35 ft. Gillig Phantom Coach 15GCB2116W1088516 4/18/1998

253 2001 | 35 ft. Gillig Phantom Coach 15GCB271811111319 11/8/2014

255 2001 | 35 ft. Gillig Phantom Coach 15GCB271811111322 11/8/2014

0 2013 | 24 ft. Ford Glaval Cutaway 1FDGF5GTODEA24800 4/11/2013

“

2250 FLORIDA BLVD. b BATON ROUGE, LA 70802 P (225) 389.8920



RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AND LEVY TAX MILLAGE RATE OF 10.6 MILLS FOR
THE CITY OF BATON ROUGE FOR THE YEAR 2019

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Capital Area Transit System that
the following millage(s) are hereby levied on the 2019 tax roll on all property subject to taxation
in the City of Baton Rouge by Capital Area Transit System:

MILLAGE
Capital Area Transit System tax in the City of Baton Rouge 10.6 mills

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper administrative officials of the Parish of
East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, be and they are hereby empowered, authorized, and
directed to spread said taxes, as hereinabove set forth, upon the assessment roll of said Parish
for the year 2019, and to make the collection of the taxes imposed for and on behalf of the
taxing authority, according to law, and that the taxes herein levied shall become a permanent
lien and privilege on all property subject to taxation as herein set forth, and collection thereof
shall be enforceable in the manner provided by law.




RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AND LEVY TAX MILLAGE RATE OF 10.6 MILLS FOR
THE CITY OF BAKER FOR THE YEAR 2019

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Capital Area Transit System that
the following millage(s} are hersby levied on the 2019 tax roll on all property subject to taxation
in the City of Baker by Capital Area Transit System:

MILLAGE
Capital Area Transit System tax in the City of Baker 10.6 mills

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper administrative officials of the Parish of
East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, be and they are hereby empowered, authorized, and
directed to spread said taxes, as hereinabove set forth, upon the assessment roll of said Parish
for the year 2019, and to make the collection of the taxes imposed for and on behalf of the
taxing authority, according to law, and that the taxes herein levied shall become a permanent
lien and privilege on all property subject to taxation as herein set forth, and collection thereof
shall be enforceable in the manner provided by law.




MARCH 2019

Route | ' '

Number |Route Name RIDERSHIP | REVENUE | MILEAGE
8 Gus Young Ave / BRCC . | 3,191 $ 1,421.:89 2,563
10  |Scenic Hwy / Southern University 7,018 $  3646.18| 10497
11 Northside Circulator / 72nd Ave / Scotlandyville 4,029] $ 2,440.21 9,964
12 |Government St / Jefferson Hwy g811|$ 327010 13,776
14 Thomas Delpit Dr / Roosevelt St 5473| $ 2,495..67 5,613
15 Blount Rd / Crestworth 3,053| % 1,775.85 15,630

16 |Capitol Park Trolley o . . ... 83| Freeservice | 1,833
17 |Perkins Rd : : 11,172)| $  5,252.12 12,354
18 Tigerland / Cortana Mall _ 7,263| $ 4,325.42 1_2,769
20 |North Acadian Thwy 10,171| $  5,084.97 11,600
21 Fairfields Ave 6,623| $  3,307.38 9,297
22 |Winbourne Ave 6,906| $  3,805.27 17,175
23 |Foster Dr 5651|%  3,204.70 10,730
41 Plank Rd 20,396/ $ 10,552.16 12,863
44  |Florida Blvd 30,994} $ 13,723.59 15,832
46 Cortana / Gardere / I'auberge ' 6,905] $ 4,132.70 16,3384
47 {Highland Rd / LSU : 24,4491 $ 10,972.31 25,915
54 |Airline Hwy North / Southern University / Metro Airport 10,907 $ 6,407.24 16,387
57 Sherwood Forest Blvd / Greenwell Springs Rd 15,147| $  9,810.88 22,548
58 Coursey Blvd / Q'Neal Ln / Ochsner 4,700| $ 2,638.38 8,645
59 East Florida Blvd / O'Neal Ln / Ochsner 5812| %  3,254.39 7,730
60 Medical Circulator 1,017] $ 423.00 7,151
70 |CATS Terminal / Southern University / Baker 42305 281513 17,522
72 |Florida Blvd Limited Stops 4,958| $ 1,756.96 4,365
80 Southern University Shuttle / Jag Train 3,617| Free service 1,972

Total| ;. 213,485].%. 106,516.50 .. 291,115




B
feq Keg Aepud SBIS)
seunsuys. | Bumbsyuey) Aeq] Jogen Jauapusadapu| leuowsp | pooD i SIS A MON

06 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 o 0 13 gz 3 shep E10L

0 0 0 o sReq fousblawg

¥l G & [ sAepung jJo laquiny

EL g ¥ g SAEPINIES 10 JOGLNN

18 cZ i 4 sdepyeap J0 JaquunN

|e30) EEY] AON 20 “dog By e unp Kep Ay TE qag uer
hosvra o Jo fo Jo jo Jo [o Jo 0 [sevierz Jear'izz Jesvize | SdItL GI¥NINN TYLOL
Lsg 0 oLt 52 {6L0z/c2/Z70 9airios popus) ssaudxg umojumed / Modny €0k
Zie'e |ozo's £95'7 amnys Ausiaaiuf) uwisyinog [ok:]
£E55'5L Q56'%  |¥9S'S Le0's sdojg pajul] pald epuUiold [4]
£05TL 65Z'%  |sO0L¥ 851F J@eq / AISIBAUN WIBYINOS § [BUILID] S1VD 0L
eLse 10°L |svZ RN 10IRINDI[D [eNON 09
89Z°G1 zig's [osR'F 965°F JBUSYIO f U [E2N,0 / PAIS BPUO]L J8BT 65
BJCFL 00y {699'F L068'% 19USY30 f L] [B2N.Q / PAIG Aasunog 85
£68°Ly wlsL |ogg'el  |gvFel Py sbupdg llemuaas f pald 352104 pooslsyg 15
GSP 0L 0 567'F 096G (6L02/£2/20 2o1Ai0s papua) pAIg BIRL [ U7 BY|ISTLA / I[BIN O3 BN 95
£8€'G 0 Z6V'E 1i8°T {6102/c2/20 8a1A9s popuUs) DAYY IS / PAl BPWOIL 1583 85
S86'vE 106°0lL [820°21 000'zH wyodiry onei { GISIeAlUN WaUIN0g [ UHON AMH SullIY 7S
0.2 0 8RZ'L Bl (6L02/52/20 52iAI95 paplis) J0JEMONY 19)eg z5
ErRag 0 €80 ¥z (6L0z/c2/20 90IAI2S Papue) JOJRINDND SHRD talD [
[92e" 7, G¥F¥Z (361 VC 13952 NS/ Py puepiBig ¥
S08'9 G069 |o 0 (6L0z/r2/20 oaiatas uebag) eBieyne, [ alepies) | BUELIOD 9%
159°0L [V 392G €3¢S (610z/c2/20 991uas papus) abasqne, 7 1 10710 | 818pieD [T
99E'Y6 ¥BE0C |£/€7¢ 666 0T PAIT EPHOH v
/2028 gse'de  [90e'Le SeF'0T Py jueld W
€651 159G |661'9 £0/°G 1q 13504 £z
¥66'LE 906’9 200’2 880'8 BAY AUINOAUIAR zZ
D9'8l ceg’n  |g52'9 izl any splelpied ¥4
Yot LE [N TR TG £55°01 AL} UBIpEDY YLUON oz
zze'ze coz'l |G6Z'f ¥9.'L 1lef EUEOD [ puepablL gL
OF0°¥E i1l [e1B'0E 5¥6'LL P SuIdd 1L
£8¢ i €8 i £hl feljod) yied jonded ol
5es'g £30'c  [z8% 0 {610Z/FZ/20 8oi/L0S Uefaq) QUOMISIID | P Junolg D
65LFE glir's £Ze'Y £9E'F 1S J2ARs00y [ 4Q Hd[9Q SEWOY L I
Lov'iZ Lig'e /806 6956 Amy uosIoyar { 1S WALIISACD) zL
2e6°21 620t [BBL¥ PLL'Y B|IAPUENIOTE [ OAY PUZ L { JOYBINILS BPISHUON 1L
[298'Z gl6L |l99L £80°. Ais1aan wepnog j kmy 3uaag i
2bL'8 L6l [I00° &¥6'2 30ug / eay Bunoy, sng g
{e101 isquadeq | Jaquwaaoy | asgeypn | Jequaidaes | isnbny Anp aunp few Nnady youae | Arensgay Aenuer FWYN ILNCH} 439NN
. [ [ 3100y

w,_ 6L0Z 101 Q1A s3noy _




MARCH 2019

2019 2018
"4# |ROUTES RIDERSHIP REVENUE RIDERSHIP REVENUE
8__|Gus Young Ave / BRCC 3,191 $ 1,421.89 4,627] § 2,447.15
10 |Scenic Hwy  Southern University 7.918] 8  3,646.18 7328/ § 350855
11_|Northside Circulator / 72nd Ave / Scotlandville 4029/ $  2,44021 | 4,553{ § _ 3,084.36
12 |Government St/ Jefferson Hwy _ 8811]$  3270.10 11,349 § 4,802.71
14_|Thomas Delpit Dr / Roosevelt St 5473|$  2,495.67 3,509/ §  2,005.20
15 _|Blount Rd / Grestworth (service began 02/24/2019) _ 3,053|§  1,775.85 08 -
16 Ca__pltol Park Trolley 83 Free service S -
17 |Perkins Rd 11,172 $  57252.12 12,859| § 8,420.60
18 |Tigerland / Cortana Mall 7,263 % 4,325.42 7,029 § 3,'715.'45
20 |North Acadian Thwy 10171 % 5,084.87 9,055 $ 5,512.49
21 |[Fairfields Ave 6623]$  3,307.38 4804 $ 2,870.36
22 [Winhourne Ave 6,906| $ 3,805.27 7497 & 4,353.01
23 |Foster Dr 5,651| § 3,204,70 4,383 2742.31
41 |Plank Rd 20,396/ $  10,552.18 22,5931 § 11,862.01
44 |Flarida Blvd 30,994/ $§  13,723.59 35,530| § 16,226.71
46 |Gardere  OLOL / L'auberge gervice ended 02/23/2019) 0l % - 5,304 § 4,473.56
46 |Cortana/ Gardere / L'auberge (serw'ce' began 02/24/2019) 6,805 $ 4,132.70 __0/$ .
47 |Highland Rd / LSU ' 24449| % 10,972.31 30,047/ $ 14,864.82
50 |Glen Oaks Circulator (service ended 02/23/2019) 0| $ - 1,281 $ 751.97
52 |Baker Circulator (service ended 02/23/2019) 0| $ - 1,205| $ 979.20
54 |Airline Hwy North / Southern University / Metro Airport 10,807 $  6407.24 9,5672| $ 5 669.40
55 |East Florida Blvd / SF BREC bervice ended 02/23/2019) 0| $ - 2,792 $ 1,890.16
56 |Mall to Mall / Drusitla Ln / Tara Blvd $ervice ended 02/23/2019) ol $ - 4349| $ 2,383.00
57 [Sherwood Forest Blvd / Greenwell Springs Rd 15,1471 $ §,810.88 14,504| § 0,748.45
58 {Coursey Blvd / O'Neal L.n / Ochsner 4,700] § 2,638.38 5,567 $ 3,315.08
59 |East Florida Blvd / O'Neal Ln f Ochsner 5812 § 3,254.39 4,575 § 2,830.89
60 |Medical Circulator 1,017 $ 423.00 775/ & 404,19
70 |CATS Terminal / Southern University / Baker 42391 8 2,815.13 5,004 § 2,809.72
72 |Florida Bivd Limited Stops 4.958] $ 1,755.96 6,084 § 1 870.16
80 |Southern University Shuttle 3,617 Free service 3,128( % -
103 |Airport/ Downtown Express service ended 02/23/2019)} ol s - 131 $ 118.59




saoinag
Upny [eusalx3
uoisusd
‘suondo [emaual JesA-auo SL/LEIZL 2 SIVI
Z Yyum ‘0zog ubnouyy gLoz ul Buipus siea )\ lepusjen Jo4 Buipua 1oenu0D Bunsixa SLEL/LL sieak ¢ Peiuon SOOAID
"81/0€/0L Uo pauado 44y "pieog [In} 0} sAowWw 0} psacidde Uue aoe|dal 0} SE0INISS paroiddy 10} 000'8YLS | SImAeneN ® seoineg IOy
sspiwwo) 384 — 81/8/LL paaocidde pieog - gL/EL/LL PNy [Bus8lX3 J0) 44 pieog 1202 2= 6102 uver 150 xouddy | syemuylapsod =L ypny
sliefjy @jelodiod pue * || Jualuainoold ‘suopeiad
‘Buisienpy % Bupsyiepy ‘Woddng  uiwpy  [elsusn
‘goueul Se yans 'AIesseoau se 'S1yD Jo) SI0IAISS 1BLfjo
PUE JRY SPN[OUI O} SBOIAIES ‘BL/EL/Z BISUEM S1yD UO
pajsod pue paINgUISIP 84 0) DY — 6L/8/Z "SBOINISS ||eo-Uo 600-5821M35][BD
IRV Uou Joj Y onssial 0] S1yD (BNSgem S1yD UO pUE | Sadiaies ||eo-uo JRy-uou -UD-610Z
SIOpUBA 0] [IELUS BIA) PB|[3OUED S| DJY — BLIPLIE 6L/9L/S | 10} d4¥ Bnssial M S1YD #dd
uo anp sjesodold "wdz 18 §L/LL/p UO plBY 8q 0} 80uUa.3jU0Dd (pajouen) agl seoIneS S29IAIBS |BD-UQ
[ES0doId-81¢ ‘SB0IAIBS [[ED-UQ 10} PBIDIOS ¥ — 6L/8Z/E | S80IASS ||BD-UQ 10} DY as.L ag.L (af=1 1500 x0iddy agl gy S82IAl9G JRY
"0]@ ‘SauIyoBW 1201 pUe SYSOoP ‘Spie|joq AlaJes
‘Bunyby ‘ssjoeydsoal ysel ‘syoel ayiq ‘Buness labuassed
‘sanijioe) Jobuassed pasoppua ‘abuno| sJaAlp ‘seimonis
Adoueo ‘'sAeq Bupyied sng aimes) |m ssnioe) pauued LOEL# Hd
8L BUD S| JOJUSD JISUBI] HEN SIaUM 'SISJUSD Jajsuel) 18)UB0) JISUBL | S A0 Usuel] ¥aN
sng Jofew { Jo seuss B Jo Juswdojanap sy) exepspun o} | abnoy uoleg YUON au) Joj agl uBisaq S3VIAI9g
w4 uswsbeuepy S1vo sad awy SIY 1B PIoY UQ — 6L/LF | SevIneg UBISSQ 04 DY ag.L agl ag.l 1500 xoiddy agl ok ubisag 39V
moorr_mﬁmh—nm:_cv—tfx
194 pajioljos “61.02 DY
jou Doy ‘suolieoyioads [eojuyoa) syl Bunsaw ul sappig VEGH Hd
anisuodsal Jsemo| ayy BuluuLLIep Ul SPIG LONONASUOD dinb3 pajejay
aUl UM SLyD JSISSe osle (M jueynsuco  ubisag Juawdinb3 pajejay coitiiae | e G R
‘o0 ‘sededspue 'SYSOly| 'SIOlBUS epNjaul (M ‘BL/LL/Y | PUE SapuBuIY JISUBI] o) agl ubisaq SadIMeS
uo Wepp:gl Je anp s[esodold 'pa)oiios sem D4 — 64L/8Z/E | Seomes ubisaq o) D4y as.l as.i asl 1500 x0iddy agl ELL ubiseg 33V
"g1/62/8 ‘@1eq BuiusdQ [esodoid ‘ajisgam SL.7 ¥d "PAIG
S1vyD uo pajsod ‘)s| JOpUSA O} JUSS UOHEDYNOU PuUB 2[4 ® PN Yueld
pasianpe sl DAY maN — 81/z/g “BuloBuo ||3s suogenieag — Sall|ioe} JISUBl) mau (owgy) (owgl) suonels 1yg
8L/0L/0L "ErS WO §G'HG'ZZES JO JUNOLWE BU} Ul JSUO [BUY. | 8pPNOUI 0} ‘PAIG Bl '@ DY 8LIEL/LL agl asi saoIneg S99IAID
PaA@dal S1VO — 8L/GZ/0L "PIEOg ([N} 0} 8A0wW 0] panoidde | Nueld uo SUOHEIS | Mg 1o} panoiddy @jeg @jeq 000'€ZE$ 11 ubisag INISS
99MIWWOD g4 — 81/8/LL Peacidde pieog - gL/gL/LL | Seoines UBisaq Joj DY pieog pejewnsy | pejewnsy | 1sog xoiddy | ‘dnoio grs T8V ublsaqg 3V
dwo) SIaNIoAA
. DE/OR/E T (v aies ® Augen sng
9L/L1/8 "19BelU0D buryeas (swielo dwon TziGziz s11ep pug
Jo |emaual panoidde pieog SIVD — 9L/0E/@ PRZIRUY | SISHION PUE AljiGerT 188) wmu_amm_ dwon 193Iop
[eMBUS] JOBIUOD — OL/G/6 ‘[eMoUdl LUOW § B 2q | ‘Suoyebisaill 'SeaiAeS 0Z/62/Z 0z/62/z nu wield Jeisnipy » Alnqen
lIm 10BRUDS SIUy eBeueyy j0aloid Jod — L1/1Z/L ‘parcidde wiey J0jsnipy oy ybnoayy ‘BL/8Z/Z S| mrm__%\mwww__hwa dnoig 19914 sng
394 — L1/0L/8 - panoiddy pieog — z1/GL/g "paroidde |  joequoo seef ¢ jeubLo) |[emauay 31ep pua m_ﬁmm >_5.uﬂ._ juswabeuepy swie|)
384 — 81/SLZ "pancidde pieog - g1/0z/ Jesk auo oy | 61/8Z/Z — BL/L/E Jo pouad anoiddy WsLng 6LILIE pejepdn swieid dy z
panssi JoBJUOD MBN — 81/L/E "Parcidde pieog — GL/SL/L | [Bmaual panoiddy pieog 0} pieog 0zZ/62/Z ‘|emauay 01 Jajey umoug s01AIg ._mumz.—_ud‘
Y
SJUBLILIOY | SAION paplAcid panouddy ajeq ajeq iy aweN adA] uonduasaqg
JoNpo.d /S@dIAIRS pieog puz uels lopuap 1uon CRITVETS
syjuow ¢ 0} | UlyyIM uoijoy pleog Buipuad s)oafoid = anjg _ Mmou |eaosddy pieog spasu | WY UOIDY = MO|BA _ 6L0Z ‘gl |udy

pieog S1v9 40} bunsi juswainsoid SV




C

[emauas 10j panosddy pieog — L1/0Z/S @ouspuodsalion LZ0Z nuuy puE [@saig
lle uo peidod sem aseyoind d-O Yl pue denEnd a|gejiene ¥1/E1/8 Uo (Bdd) 404 joequo)
yim paublis pue pazijeuly Sem JOBRIUOD — gL/9Z/E “USHEd slemaus) oeiljend | eb sad soud "UOIE}DI|0S erm_urmm,%% v
Ao Agq peaoidde ‘oeijjeny Aq 1oenuod paubisse sem ‘woyshs Buisuadsip 0z/LE/E Jeak auo 0} pieme =xe) + 99 | usued Aup e eqUoY
IO PlaySUBl By} UOHEDLIIOU POAISDaY — gL/g/0L 'pieog [Bny ayy v syedpjued nIY) [emaual | G/m Juod peacidde | wpeggopg | (PBLLIBND Aq S1VD 9 o0 Juior
yosely 0} ob M SIyL 'S1VYD PSuNouU pue Jesk suo Joj 0} Ayjus sjeledss e Jeah auo Jeaf z jlpunon + SIdO paubisse sem) ysueq suliose ue
pamaual sey ysued AIlD — 61/8/Z ‘parciddy 384 — 6L/FLIE | SE UONEDIOS (BN $10Z Ul 10} anroiddy usuny 0NN d-D AIBG Ojuj o Ao 1l oP
JN0 JUSS JOBAJUOD [emBuUBY ‘pancidde pieog — GL/GLIE | SL¥D Papnpul usied Ao 0} pJeog 0Z/LE/E0 vLILO/LL 8oud |10 Playsuep Aq d4y I2s3iq [end
1K 1ad g/z°950% = Jeak 1ad ¥20Z
"/ L/£Z/Z U0 WNpUSppY EIA JNo sasuodsal /£1'82¢$ 4o sjuswAhed z ) uBnoiyy (sesng B oL)
no uum /1/0g/e Aq @8y enp seuinbu| “LL/Z/E AOEG | gog'z1z'ps 150D [BIOL (v 'SEPSHO2S) | sieak aseyoind/
anp sjesodold -suonmsul [eppueuy s|dynw o) PayoIos ‘pouad Jeak 2 Jano Aeg -sieaf diop [epde) m:.“.umnw _ asear]
dd4¥ — £1/8/g sesng Bio 1. 10} si Bupueuly “jeacidde Joy sasng B9 oL LLLZIE / 10} s3sng 21gnd .mamc.h
PIBOq [N} O} BAOW 0} Way panoldde Ipd - L1/9L/E "S8SNQ |  aoueulq aseyoing/esesT panoidde [esa1g Byio eduswy sdueul4 sng
Biiio 0y jo Buoueuy pascidde pieog — LL/LZ/E sng [enden pieog $Z0Z 100 | ZL0Zidy | 0l esueulg jo oueg a4y Bujoueuiy
E
‘Slequisw |EMBUBI BUO LM
O3d eul Ag pes|es se paymisu] D13 Buipuswwooal Jole| maual 0] | GLZZeS ppe |emaual 0zl'89% GL/0E/Y 51 @1Bp pug
03D SIVD O] JsPe| PpIEMB 10} UOREPUSWIWLIODS. UONEPUSLILIOda] OJD 0} | PUB IDEQUOD 10ENUOD loror sfaning
syl peasedeid jusweindold gL/ELF  8L0Z ‘9l |udy 189y '§L8'C01$ J0 1500 [emaua] 1eaf suQ 10} [eMBUBI O uonoejsiies
U0 Joesjuod | parcidde pieog S1vD "SPUnj 210W 1o} SYSE) |EJ0) pamaual e e 1eak anoidde SLZ'ZE$ PPY) ajnyisu| aoialeg 4 '
[euonippe yim [emaual ancidde pue mainal 0) 324 6L/L LIV E 80IM) SASAINS pieog 0] pleog 0Z/0E /¥ 6L/LIS SLE'E0LS 213 jnsuo) Jawoisny
uoneuswa|dw juy Xen
‘uo paxiom Buieq sijuswnoop | weibold pue  SjUBWSa|g S¥18L0Z Od ovL'czs jueynsuon
10BAUOD 'BL/0Z/6 PUS PUE 8L/EL/g UO uiBag o} somies | weibold 3gq  eenjeas | HUCIUIEM o0 L glele seoIIeg
lo} yopsld 0} Juss Jape pasooid O} 900N — 8L/OL/G | M Ayl assum ‘seoinisg 6102 ;
'060°66$—Buiposoxe—ioH}aBe—S10BRUCo—HOHSIH—HI0q | UONENeAS WeiBold 380 | xxxeloz od Juy xely | Sejewpossy | .. | UOHENBAZ
enoidde 6 33+ — epuaby 394 woyy parowdy — 6L/LLY | 2pinoid M JUBHNSUOD | nuog uswum | BLILEZL GL/L/L z69'sr$ '8 Hopivid inswopy | wedboud 3ga
Mmainay
WBISIOAD V.1 610ZA 10 (morney
JDUBSISSY MBINDY-1S0d ybisianQ aA
‘Hoddng uopoy aAposuoy | F9ZBL0Z Od 188°L¥$ iIsuayaidwon
s0uBIsISsY 20UBdWoD (HOD) MeIAsY BISIBAD :sise} apnjoul 0} 610z | OO TEHM | 5 e | gumzizy ; )
aAlsUayaIdWo) V14 ‘pendaxa  ‘pazieuy 1oeiUOD) — ‘leiuusi | 1 4 Bulwoadn V.1d 6L0ZAd
611917 "600'08% Buiposoxe-iauiabel-‘S1oenues-HeHstd-tieq jo uoleledaId M | xxx6L0z0d suopdom | SOIBIDOSSY | .o | OJUBISISSY
anoidde-01-39+4 — epusby I Woly parowsy — §L/LLIY | SLVD ISISSE 0} JUBYNSUOD) | nuon uapupp 6L/LEIZL juanng 159°66% 8 Holld ynsuo) 2oueldwon
“J3U00S 10 SABP (g XaU 8y} uiyiIm Ino )
Spig ay} eAey o) Buidoy aue app ‘spuny [eiepad Buisn mwmwﬁm_ﬁ:;mﬁ w_ww_hM
‘siaysem snq g Joj ‘sle|dwoo jsowie ‘payelp Buieq 0} JopUs, > ‘SIBUSEM SNq 90z L# Md
Sl g1l — 61/8/Z 1IN0 puss pue azijeul 0} JUSLIBINDO0. (Z) omy 10) uopE}RIOS AU SIBYSEM SNg
o} pemaines Buieq gl| JO uewp [euld — 6L/Z/p | Budojeasp sijuswainoosg 000'00%$ 153 agl g1l uopianisuon
‘6102 "9 ydlepy wdpQe
‘8l ang pig '1sl| JOPUSA 0} psjieLWS pUE 3)ISgam 0}
g1l parsod S1v0 — 61/9/z "0 ‘dnosg uononxsuog i
Aliey .B_u_u_g }samo| 0] pieme Bupuswiwossl WO —— au} o POEL# dd
S| pue ‘spiq ¢ paAledal §1yD ‘pausdo spig — 61/9/€ 91| — J8jua) ysuel] 6L0Z/61L/E aouenssi 971 “dnoig isjusy
‘panoiddy 394 — 6L/VLIE BL/LZ/E UO INO JUSS Od BUBLIOD) JO UOIONASUOD anoiddy 1o sxyeam 000'525% uoIINIISUOY }suesj eueyony
Yim pasdold 0} @dnoN ‘pasoidde pieog — 6L/61/E 10} g1| :gIg7d 0} pieog € UM 1500 x0iddy B all uononsuo)
2
SJUBWIWOY | 310N pepiroid panoaddy ajeq ajeq Juy aweN adA] uonduosag
Jonpoud /sadiAles pieog pu3g yeis J0puap Juon ERITVETS
syjuouw ¢ 03 | ulylim uoijoy pieog Buipuad sjosloid = an|g _ mou [eaosddy pieog spaau j way| UOHIY = MO|[OA | sL0zZ ‘o Iudy

pieog g1V 40} bunsiy jJuswainooid S1VI




149
PY jue|d pue
11D eueuO)
10} sajuawy
‘sulejunoy Bupjuup ‘spaejjog ‘ssjoeldasal Jsues]
ysesp ‘suopeis Buibieys ‘sisjueid  ‘syoes  eyig  se 19 mm.: ddn
yons ‘sajjuawe J8ys-syi-yo, apnjoul o) mou payelp Buleg | py Mueld PuB  BuBLOD 000'055$ I S
8Ll - 61/8/z Wewabeuely Siv) Jod ploy UQ — 6L/ | 10} SSINUSWE JjBYS-8UI-40 agL agl agL 1500 x01ddy agl gl T s|eu2ie
N
610Z/6lL/C uo
pieoq Q1D Ag paaoiddy
1oBJUOD saoIuBg [eBa
Jeak (€) a1yl 02/81/5
) cele “Ajdde Ny} S1 JORNUOD
. 8L Aep pus pue 610z 610Z/6L/2 sajel Aunoy + c s20IAI8G saolIAleg
leaf ise| wouy sebueyd | g fey uibeqojsoeid ul | penciddy zz/31L/s BLBLIS | eagseupgey | OV WAL | - ppo :
ON 'JoBJju0D JeahA-¢ mau panoidde pieog — §L/61/Z | o9 0} 19B1UOD JEBA-E MBN pieog (mau) (meu) Alyiuopy MeT] aIpeqy ynsuon jeben
1
Jue)nNsuoy e se asiuadxe siy Buisn Ag
Alsnpu) ysuel) sy} Ul eouUBLBdXD JO UJEAM SIY WO JyBusq 6L/LE/CE N}
0} anupuod 0} 3N PINoM S1VD ‘SIGBlIBAE SI JBAII0L I aq piNom Joefuos)
pue ajgepioye si 1l Jusixa au} o) paiy sI O30 Aindsg wus) SIVIAIBG
Buo| e uaym/yl usAg "uomsod SIY) Ul BAIBS [|IM JOPUBA BU) (somijo Aiosinpy
awn jo ybus) uo Jusbunuoo s| (B0} JUNOWE JORNUOD "S1YD o1 pejejoy pue
Jo} uonisod mau e si sIy) "S1vD Aq pany si 030 Aindag Ined) 211 s
Jusuewsad e U SAIBS 0} ‘S8oeg AIOSIADY PalE|ey 000'09% ‘sauisnpu| 032 Alndag
pue 030 Andsg wuseju| Jo} 19EHUOD (PIOY UO) — GLIL/Y JOBIUOD JUEYNSUOD MBN 6L/LE/ZL "xolddy aby mepN ynsuon =gl
1
“Aouaby auy)
J0 sjuswysydwodoe ay)
‘S|EMBUS] YIUOW-9A[aM] () JN0) | 9SBOMOYS pue ‘Ajunwwon
0} dn 104 uondo sy} UIM ‘SUUOW Z| 10) 000°SZLE 10 JUNOWE ay} ul pueliq aapisod
8U] Ul 2g 0] UOHEPUSWIWODA] PJIEME JOBHUOD LM ‘82USIDS | B UIBJUIBW PUE plINg ‘eseq
ooy st uuy Buuoos 1saybiy (D3d) sspiWWoD uoneniea] diysiepu g1yD asealoul
[esodoid 8y Ag pejenieas asem  uyoiym  sjesodoud 0} subisap pue saibejens SaoIAD
. S
G paAleoal SIVWD 'Ssald AP@ap 8yl pue a8jedoApy Bunayew 'joul ‘sweiboid eL/8Li6 1eah sad m.
ayl ur pasiusape pue swuy ubisap ojydesb zg o) Juas sem Bunaylew Bunnosxa pue panoaddy winwixe py aJul3idg ubiseq
UOHBNOI0S d4Y UY - 8L/L2/L "Parociddy pieog — 21/8L/6 Bugeaso u 51v0 IsIssy pleog 61/0£/6 8L/L/OL 000'sZ1L$ ooy dd4y olydesn
2
‘JoeAUOD [BMBUSY Bulpuswwosay Jeya] 03I 998
‘BL/LE/E NIYY LL/L/y JO pouad |emaual Joy |enoiddy pieog
Spasau J0BjJjUOD — LL/LZ/E 10BNUOD JO [BMBUR) parcidde
pieog = [}/1Z/g 10BIUOD [EMBUDY Bulpuswiwosey
8l87 03D 9#18S BL/LE/E N 8L/ o  pouad auljosen
api idi
SJUBLLIWIOY | SBION papiAocig pano.ddy 2)eq ajeq Jwy awepN adA] uofidioasaq
JoNpold /sedIAlag pieog pu3z Hels ; JOpuapn Jjuon 92IAIRS
syjuow ¢ 0} | ulyym uonoy pieogq Buipuad sjosloid = an|g _ mou |eaosddy pieog spasu / Wa)| UOIOY = MO|[DA _ 61L0Z ‘oL [Udy

pieog Sy 40 Bunsi juswainosoid S1VI




'610z-piw Bulpieme pue sAep 0g-0g UILHIM
o d-4¥ 8y} aney o) Buidoy ale apy ‘uoneuoul Jeyeb o)
suawedeg SLVD 1B Yim Bupom Joanjuj Jo SLpuowW Jaye BIEMIOS dH T
‘d4y 8yl Bunjelp uo Joanul yim Bupuom si JUBWAIND0IH | — BIEMIJOS BPIM-LLBISAS JO) alemyos whw dy3d
SIVD - 6L/8Z 6L/l U0 SIVD 0O} JUas MIOM JO | d4Y Ue 8nssi pue jeip o) apIM
adoog pasinal e yim sbejs Jelp ayj Ul s S| dJ¥ — 6L/ZIy | Buppom Ajusund si g1vo asl asl asgl agl wayshs alemyos
‘d<d 8} Jo syuawalnbal [ed|uyds) ay) 92w papiugns
sjesodoid ay} | Buiwisiep ul Ajealb (D3d) 28piwWoo
uogieniera  |esodoid SlyD djpy m  @ouBlSISSE SIUL
‘Jaw ale sjuswaainbal pue spasu uonesyioads |BOILUYDS)
PUB MOS SLVD 2Insua 0} paaigos. sjesodoud auy 1o mains) juswdojaaag
[E21ULDS} BU} Ul Sjuswleda JUSWAIND0Id PUB 1| S1VD 81/91/8 panoidde 384 . uonesyioadg
15ISSE OS[E [|IM ABUL "dd¥ UE 10§ LOIN|0S [BDILYDS) S1BMYOS siLLzie . U] m>w du3
E 10} 599dg [e01UYDD | puB (MOS) 340 40 3d0og pa|iejep & 8L/12/8 panoiddy Buninsuod | 50
dojoaap |Im JUBYNSUCD BYL "gL/1Z/8 uo parciddy pieog panoiddy pieog pJeog 6LIOEI 8L/LI6 vLY'v6$ Joanju| a4y SIEMHOS
"YoBs SYIUOW-Z| IO} Maual
0} suoido g yim 1oBnuCd Ieaf-g "ou| ‘seoines Ajundag s|emaual S82JIAI8S
I8SIBAA O} POPIEME JOBNUOD AJUNDSS — 9L/GL/L UC pJeme "UONED0| "PA|g BPUO| SL/EL/LL leaf-auo 1S0D [ENUUE | OU| ‘S@2IAIBS piens
|leuibuo paacaddy pieog “pleog ||ny 0} aAowW 0} pancidde 0SZZ SL1VD e sealnes paaoaddy Z40 L 000°252% funoag saoIAeg
Sa)IWWOD 394 — 81/8/LL PaAcidde pieog - gL/EL/LL pieng AUnoss - 4/ ¥ pieog BLILEZL 6L/LIL xouddy 18s19p dy Ajuunoeg
S
"10J0BUOD $90IMISS JISueljeled S yD Se uoneuodsuel | (gzoz Ny | sjemasusl
AN 01 J0BHUOD JO pIEME UB n_m_ucmEEooE S1VD .:oxmmﬂ_wmw wE._. Sﬁﬁou eakauoz | 000°L6'08 vav
'S)insel @a)IWWOY uolenieAl |esodold 8UYl uo paseg . 1eah g /M 10B1U0D wnowe )
Bunesw 394 —g1/ZL/L "Bunesw pieog ged |jun pausiep J8pinold @ainies >ﬁmo.~om%ma [epusjod) g JoRjUOD dsuesy ss0IAI0S i i
pi20og — 8L/aL/L ‘AN O} pieme paroidde pieog — gL/0Z/z | SUBL|-BlEd PR)OBRUOD pleog LZ/0EY 81/9/S leak g AN d4y }Jisuelijeied
d
"azaaljljue Jo} ade|d Ul JOBRUCD B
PEyY Jou 8ABL M pUE '|i0 JOjOL U0 8Sea.dul 8oud pejsanbal 029've$
IO Iseooung ‘szesliuy pue |IQ JOJON 10f BL/OZ/E 821040
jo ajep Buiuado pig uym ‘Mou IO SI gl| Uy — BL/LIE oljad Joj
‘000°06$ JO Ploysalyl SOID BuY UM ‘0Z9'PES 1O [Bjo) 150D x0.ddy (110 10101)
B 10} 99/0yD 0ljod 0} papieme aq |m (IO I0jo|N DZ9TLSE ‘uojido [BMBURI BUO LJIM 0,9°15% 2dloy onad
29 [IM §L0ZAD 40 Jspulewsl o} oenuod (0L9°9€$ | 6L/LE/ZL  YbBnosyy swsay GL/LE/ZL
J0 |EI0} B B) PIN ISneyxs |aselp ‘llo suiginy olnelpAy | esay) o) palolos sem g ybnouyy |en4 azsanuy
1o} S1VD uim sjoenuod Ajuauns oym ‘(000°GL$ 4O |EJO) | UB OS ‘Bzesypuy 1O |IQ 610z |udy zonBiy) 4o} 2
E J0}) |and zanbi\ 0) papieme aq ||m azsaynue sy a1aym | Jojopy Joj soejd Ul joBHUCD ul aroidde 1800 |BloL (azaannuy) pue
‘Papieme aq 0} |0 JOJOW PUB 2ZaBWlUE 10} g1| — BL/Z/F | OU Sey Apuauno SIvD 0} pieog 6LILEZL 6LILIL xouddy jen4 zanBipy g1 (10300) 11O
0
SJUBWIWIOY | SAION paplAoid panoiddy ajeq ajeq Jwy awenN adA) uonduoasaqg
19NPOU /SOOIAIDG pieog pu3g uels Jopuap Jjuon CRITVETS
Syjuow ¢ 0} | Uiyym uoijoy pieog Buipuad sjoafoid = anig _ mou [eaosddy pieog speau / Wia)| UOHDY = MO||DA _ 6102 ‘9l |udy

pileog S1VvD 10} m:._uw_l_ juswaindoid S1v9o




A8 ‘oJess LL90L000VPE |  comeds
ue ‘ajeoyta) BuikggoT ‘spiysa ay) ul sjusuodwo) (18pio Joe1U0Y s
,__u«“w_.__u % 'Bouswy Ang e ‘eseyoind siy} 4o} paulejqo 40 1diaoay _mum._. 3eIs v ssed gl SUep
a/e sjuaWnoop Y14 sjeudoidde ay) sunsus 0} Jopuaa siy) Ewﬂ ow.wm 16818 (suljoses) oﬁwwmo VISUEI]-EiEg
i Buijiom Ajusing S| JUBWaINd0ld SIVD "L LO0LO0OFF# JOBNUOD 31BIS Y] >mn_w Y |xm <o<>m Vo
JoBNUOD BJB)}S BUBISINOT 3U} JO JO S3|BS SNg AnesI) WoJy 8sEY2INg 0} puaju| SLILLIL il - o — vay
lopusn panoidde sy} woly paseyoind 8g [IM SB[DIYSA panoiddy Sieines | SerEnnes 27767098 | sng aAnea1d Btifion] S3I2IYaA
pasemod suljoseb esayl "glL/glL/. uo paaciddy pieog 81/21/. panocidde 394 pleog p I I
o Hlens LL90LO0OVYE | conpds
ue ‘sjeoyiua) BuikggoT ‘sppiyan auyy ul sjusuodwo) 10e[UOD 3IBIS Y Byl (16pu0 JoenUoD e
w«.ﬂw_.ﬂ_, % ‘Bouswy Ang “971 ‘sseyoind SIy} Joj paulelgo W0l 8SBYIING 0} puaju| 10 a_mw.& Aﬂﬂm Vi V B, suep
ale sjuawnoop v 4 ajeudoidde ay} ainsus 0) JOPUSA SIU) saye aujoses post i
Uim Buppiom Ajusing st juswsinoold S1vD L L90L000FH# 81/91/@ panoidde 34 >mom< r ,_Ec.._.8 mmm >w 1] 1
JoBjjUOD BJE)S BUBISINOT BY) JO JO S9|BS SNg SAREal) gLLzie m_‘w_‘ﬂ%w - zz memwm - Auoﬂm vav
lopusn paacidde By} woy paseyoind aq [IM B[DIYBA 8L/1e/8 panoiddy ignes polewnss | zz'zoz'eos | SNg oAneald | suioy S3[2IYSA
pasamod aujjoseb siy| 'gL/LZ/g uo paaciddy pieog panoiddy piecg pieog pajewnsy [ =
0Z0z aunr sseo0id
|emaual Uelg
'seoud swes e £|/Le/8 ZT/LE/8 6k 2Z1L6/8
Ny} J9BIJUOD puaxa ybnouyy LLILL8 154 0000028 E:w m_mwwcﬂ
0} paalbe Jeakpoon) S|emaual niy} st s11500 = wamh EN mhmms
“ulayaiy (g) » Jeskpoos (g) B — . hww\ﬂs, amhﬂﬂ__}wow abeiany 910z s
‘auojsabpug (1) woly spig £ paneoay S1yD ‘Buiuado pig Suatim I o ) o
joejueD M (asueuajurepy
LL/ZZ[9 Jopusa 8|qisuodsal pue anisuodsal 15amo| ay) Sem LL/ELt, panosdde 354 Smbcmooh e ——r i n L
e Lot sen s ¥ LABEI RO SHELS =V] i0J1800183) | auy) seouauny Alddng
0} JOBJUOD JO pJEME UB puawWwWoos) sjdeq jusweinoold LLI8LIL panoiddy |enu| i mroumwwv:m Adans osea oulL
pue BN S1VI-LLIELL "LLIgL/L uo parociddy pieog paAolddy pieog pieog 0zZ/LE/8 LLILI6 1 L T
‘ ZS0'591L%
SAS VAV % Odv AV SBRIBACD BN B £69[AISS
Joj abelano) 2ouEURjuEL fueiep auﬂﬂmﬂg . -
BL/LE/L M) 8L/L/8 WOl SUSISAS YAY B OdV "INV | Alueuep B soueusjuie)y BLILLIL 2 ‘sauaien aI1EMy0S h_uﬁ : nw yojepeinoy
Jo} ebelanod Auenem pue poddns yos) mausl o) |eacidde Moddng yos | panosddy voddns yos) oo a1eM}OS
dd eo 6L/LE/L 8L/L/8 10 19K Buo Yyajeyainoy 301035
pieoq Bulpuad wis)| - 8L/ZL/L "8L/LLIL UC pancsddy pieog 8L/ZL/L panoidde Ig4 pieog ; . q
. PapIACIH panouddy ajeq ajeq Jwy aweN adAj uojy s_“.“wun_
SiHaLILID D/ SaI0N 1oNnpoid /sadiaiag pieog pug Hels : Jopuap juon a_o_ _.aw
Syjuow ¢ 03 | ulyyim uoljoy pieogq Buipuad sjoaloid = an|g _ mou |eaosddy pieog spasu [ Wa)| UOOY = MO||BA _ 6L0Z ‘9L It

pieog S1vD 10 Buysi juswaindoid S1VD




"diysiapes| S1vO pue pieog

PapInOId Sa9IAIRS

032

pu3

sjuswuwo)

030 Aq josloid panoidde 1saje) sejeaipur sjyblybiy mojjak

yejs

junowy

J0puap

"8)8|dwoo o} syjuow g Ajgjewixoidde | o) jues aq ||m Hodal [euld ‘Apms uonesuadiwiod S8djAlRg
Qg pjnoys aulpwil "S1vo Joj jesodoid Aiejes 1o syeyiew Jefiwis 0] asedwod pajeuluLs] ljsuag
paniwgns  Jaybejles -  gL/oz/LL | Pue diysiepes| S1VD YIM Jesiu 0 JUBINSUOD | nuod ushum Inun 6L/LIL 000's¥$ Jaybe|en Apms dwoy Aiejes
‘pazijeuld joenuod - 8LIZLIV
‘8L/1€/Z1 ybnouy} pusixa pue
‘GZ9'ZL$ 10 JUnowWe JusLNd 0} G9/'8LS sBuime.qg jenydasuo
PPY :papusuly JOENUOD -8L/9ZIL (ege J(e8z) tm_E _mmﬂ mhmtooo
BL/SL/S UBnoly pusixe pue 0BL°Z$ | -Hd "BNIS HEW[EBAA / BUBLOD JE sjuswaaoidul 1508102 Od jwy Xew u| ‘auod
PRY ‘papuswy 30BJUOD — 6L/6L/L | GNH USUBIL WUSHU| BY) SpIAcId [IM JUBNNSUOD | nuon uanum B6LISLIS 8LIgLIY 08L'vE$ g 0JUO JBY
peAoiddy ajeq ajeq aweN

:o_un_ uasaqg

‘epuabe Bunssw pieog @EoNN_‘ uo 3q 0} pa|npayos si a|qejieAe
UOIEPUSWIIODSY PIEMY JOBIUOD ', 0F J9qWanoN Ag anp slematial .
aq |Im siesodold ‘siasodoud _m_uc&ou sidnyinw o) payoljos Jeah m.w__mmwrwmm“omm mv_mw,%mwmmwma
usag sey d4d — 9L/0L/LL "paneoal siesodoid ¢ Buowe S80IAIDS 8IBM}OS : U0 Z/m snid s ¥
1saybiy paiods oym ‘0i6oT Jusieaon 0) 394 Aq pencidde pue BunsoH sapnjoul uﬂﬂwwﬁr sleak ¢ _.__m_m%m%% ¥ 2160 mmw_wﬁmm :m_wmn_ 9y
PIEMY — 91/SL/ZL "SYSaM Mau payoune| — 210z AInp - ubisag-ay asaEM pieog 6LILEZL | LLILO/LO slewins3 jusjeaon s)IsqaMm SIS
M
“M@am sIy] Jaje| Juas aq ||m pue
€l jo peajsul sasng g Jo aseyoind au) joayel o) pabueyd
aq [Im "O’d 8 ‘uswabeuew Jad '9L0OZ "08Q ul |eacidde
pieog souis Buipuad "O'd  B@PAN — Zi/1z/s (Ploy PIq 8U UO Y3y by B pouad Aanjeg
uo) sasnq g Jo} Od anss| 0} 0JD Woy Yd paroidde SjuaWUBISSY oﬂwmmv m_waumw yuow g4 03 9}
Buniemy —L/LL/p SYuow g S| ayep AusAlep 8C = B 559] 9¢ ; 8102 35Q/nON
LULVIL 0202 Ny} 0zZ'222'L1+% i
8yl ‘O'd bBuipuss siojeq weyy wol ol wy Ang 10 yaam siesh G Jano sanus We ms.omcmmmn R
uo Bunpiepy “sesnq g Joj Biji9 0) ¥eem siuy} pansst 91/0z/z} 8102 paiapIo aq poppe (g) sesn
o9 IM / °0'd Bulpuad — L}/L1/L — Bili© 01 Juss “0'd oseuomd oy | 99Q/MON | penssi | 3250895 | 4 eoudsnqueg | M 8 ity -
LL/L2/L "soueusUBl\ S1VD )D paAl@dal ussq aney Ob'Z9E'190'6% O'd |10l panoaddy ul Asanjep usaq g Jo @seyaing _GWO_HW HGE 3o0lg _ .D
S9SNG 8 |IB Jey) Paljou Sem juawainoold — 6L/g/L e 082'Lz¥S :20ud JUn sNg pieog sesng g sey - O'd 4BpI0 € 2711 ‘Bio Buijioy S3[JIYsA
‘Blis)oid pue suone}s
1914 MON ‘OAE Woy SPIg € PaARoaY S1VD — LL/ELIOL - Buibieyo
'8]ep-0} SpEW USaQ SBY PIEME O] UONEPUALLILLIODSI Goners 213092
ON ‘peullelap Uu®eg Jou sey pig  8|qisuodsal pleme BuiBeys m Sul Blie
pue aAIsUOdSal JSBMO| BU] "MBIASI JBPUN [|1S 918 PaAlaDal 8L0Z 10 21ep auy 3U0 pue snq suones M: } £ p
SPIG € IV — LL/pL/LL ‘[eroidde oy pieog |iny o) way ey 'Zzae4 hq | woy sieak 8U0 J0} 1500 BuiBieyo abuey Alsneg
BAOW O} PAJOA I8 ‘QAE AQ paniugns pig salsuodsas pue aq o) Aenleg | g xeu By Jun xoiddy u_..;um > Papuaix3/m
paolid 1samo| au} 0} SaSNQ 100} G 2LI988 € Jo aseyaind ay) 8L/l 10} pasn SPZ'LBE'eS : I (use)
J0} JOBAUOD JO PIEME UB PIPUSWWOOS] S1yD — bugesw | ‘suonels Buibieys asnoy | uo panss| Od aq ued wm_m_wmm“w € liEsul (¢) sesng
394 - 8L/ZL/L S9SN ¢ 10} QA ©) pieme parcidde -ul ¢ [jejsul pue abue: 8L/9L/1 pequen i pue sasng
: gp q a9a pe ] Wik I ] = |
pieod — gL/9L/L '6l/ze/z Aq sjep Aisauep ypm sesng | Aueyjeq papuaixam 100) GE panoiddy £ 10} Bolg 13033 H001G g
0313 € JO JSpi0 By} Jo} AL O} PARIWIGNS ‘O'd — 8L/L/E | 'SBSNQ ousje € aseyaingd pieog EZ/9L/L0 | 8L/9L/10 pig E10L ¢ sasng Bulljoy S3DIY3A
T )IAOI a 9 : B , i
SiuBWILOY / SajoN papiAoid - panoiddy 1eg ajeq Juy wen edA) | uondussaq
Jonpold /saoiAles pieog puz yels A Jopuap | muod ERIVE
Syjuow ¢ 03 | UM co_uo< Emom Buipuad sjoaloid = en|g _ mou jeaosddy pieog spesu / way) UOHOY = MO|IBA | 610z ‘o1 judy
pieog s1Vv9 Joj Buysi] Juswiainoold S1VD




Vi

panoidde pieog —/L/LL/L Auoyine 2InelphH)
ploysaiyl 030 syl uiyum ale pue 029'9¢%
BL/LE/ZL NI BL/L/L 4O pouad ayy 1oy eng
Jeah auo Joj pamaual ag ||Im SIOBRAUOD Zanbip
ssayl ‘|end zenBiy wol spnpoid FERUOILOED
10} 019°9€$ PUE }SEOD UNG WOl 10} 000'05$
sjonpoud 10} GOQ‘ZL$ O} 10D |enuue "8Z99l)JUB PUE |10 JOJOW BJe SWa}| Z Say | JouneuE
pajosloid sy Bupemol Agausy) ‘abesn ‘610Z JBaA 8y} 10) 000'0LS AjPlewixoidde | P/BOE MOIRq (ase816
pajedionue [eulBuo sy Uey) SS8| Yonw Je pajewnse si eoud se ‘jercidde Joy pieog oy | St PIOUSSIL |19aum pue
a1e 110z JAD Joj slonpoid pejejey | OB [m @seyL ‘SAep Og IXau 8y} uiim papoljos | SE "@Acidde pIny ‘suel
1O 2u) o} abesn ay) jey) paulwLR}ep 8q (W 1| MaU / "Pig 89 [|IM ‘SaSER.10Ul . SIETTNITS
usaq sey 3 — LLSLEL  Cudy soud J1aybiy o} anp ‘pamaual Jou sway| S1030 S1vD ‘1o Jean))
Ul 0/9°L5$ 4oy ZanBipy 0] 1PRUOD (210} R O SO0°ZIS
snoidde 0} pieog "0/9'9g$ Jo) sway "9SEDJOUI JO) SUOIBNOIED |dd apircid sieaaLsy 1seon
1810 10} S1VD UM 10BIUOD AJUaLInND | O} SPaaU JOPUSA ‘[emaual au) J0 awi 1B |dd sul ankiauD ung
fouyy pue ‘0O0'GLS Jo} BzBBYNUY uo paseq juswisnipe 8old ‘2z/9L/L Uybnosy | ¢ sey joesnuog @ouBUBIUIB N
ay} pepseme agq pnom |an4 zanbipy 10 spouad Jesh (1) suo anISsa02Ns () 1Noy ‘BL/LE/ZL (1o Joj01) S}oNpo.id pajejey
'0Z9'vES 10} 11O Jojop Byl pepleme | o) dn s|ge|iene suondo [EmaUSY JOBIUOD LL0Z | MUY ZL/LLIL 0297ES
3Q pinom 89104D osed ezeRUNUY | '6L/LE/Zl UBnolyl 10BNUCY "BZSBLNUY PUB IO pancidde R ) g1 sayddng pLe
PUE [IO 10J0N 10} paIDIOS gL — 6L/Z/F | 1010 Joj uopdo jemaual (1) auo sey g1 6102 pieog 6LILEIZL 6LILIL oljad EIEE e}
‘Bunsaw
pieog Jadoid oy 8  pelussald
39 pInom  UdIym  ‘ppenuod  sebuol syuow g
e ol Jsjus 0} asooyd Aew SIvD ‘fuessaoau |euonippe
‘weiboid ol tBYY S} pe)deooe | punoj SB Sesle UBYJ0 PUB SaAISS S1YD) ue maual
pieog a8y pue Bujgesw pleog | Jey} SeEale JUSLND BU} 4O SPISING JaUNd Sa)Nol 0} uondo/m | welboid
84} je passnosip sem syl — GL/SL/L | SLvD dmss op welboid joid ysuenomiy 6LISLIL 6L/6L/9 8L/0Z/Z1L 000'sZ$ ‘doTsuel) 10|!d }ISUesjoIdI
"JOBIUOD JO PIEME BUIpUaWWodal uoneoldal SpNY g @Be10iS pnojo Juswase|dal F—— pepUaLULLI0da)
FEET] 03D ues aIMuaA | Juejsul ‘selepdn JA G ‘uonnos Janias dmjoeq -8L0Z# 3y J8ne1 030
papuaWILLCDal D3d'siesodoid | JoAlas BUO Ul ||B pue Sapnioul Janies dnyoeq 8LIZLIo saibojouysa) aouelddy
€ PSAIB0BI PUB pesiuaApY - gLoZ Ady | Bunisixe g1vD Joj walshs || dn-yoeq Jesh § | zeosloz Od £2/0€/9 8LILIL 8z¢£'8zs$ 8iNjuaA JoAlag dn yoeg 1|
‘papaau se 03D au} Aq paubisse syse) osiW 1oEAUoD
Y0 pue oouepinb ‘siSABUE  ‘UONEYNSUOD il s Bupjnsuogn 03D 8Y) 0} BOUEISISSY [B199dS YH
‘suonouny HH pezieioads Jayjo pue | ‘eoipe 0 Aem AQ SOOIAISS/S90IN0SSI  MH Z01810Z Od (14 0S$) dH jpenuon
aouelsisse WH Bupinsuo) gEpZ UNp | eanebiseaul [enuspyuod sapiacid JUBINSUOD | nuon uspUm 6L/ILEIS gL/L/9 000°05% JalaAg sag juejinsuod ¥MH
ps||y 2g UeD suolysod JuedeA 'siseq papasu Se uo L0z 19B1U0D Bupnsuoy yH
[jun suonesado Ajlep Yim 1008l MH | SuoIsiAsl Ndd B sedljod ‘Buiuies dws ‘supne 8907102 Od K om] (14 ovg) uoliNoN JoEJUOD
mau Aq papsau souelsissy Z10g Jdy | ‘smolnal aouendwod/m S20IASS MH SSPINOL] | nuos uapLm BLISZI¥ LLIvZH 000°sH$ el juejinsuod ¥H
"1e2A/000'8%
Jo sesusdxe 1081p JO  BAISNPUI
‘000'0G$ JUNOWE  10BJUOD  XBW w140 dnoig
'8L0Z 1ely 'sabueys Jsyjo oN ‘6LOZ (Buifggol) seoiAlas [BUOIEONPT PUB SUOHEISY L hﬂ_%rmoﬁwwn_ Wy Xep ABeojens m:mu_:w:oo
yBnouy) JoeRUCD pusiX3 — 6L0Z JBIN | 'SIBYY [BJUSWUWIDAOD sapioid  JUBNSUOD | nuoo uapum 6LILEMZL 6LILIL 000°05$ uiayinos Suolje|ay JusawuIaAor)
'6L0Z ',6L ‘uoisod Jaoo
AON UuBnouyl 0z AON UO 3iom Emwg Bunesadp jeyD S1vD 9yl Jof ydleas ayy ul “%m“wﬂm 9711 uonisod
0} 61 J9GUWISAON UO JOPUBA 0} Jues | Wes} JuswabeuewW JOJUBS S) PUB S1VD 1SISSE |  |eze10z Od WY Xew ‘Kuedwon 00D SL1VD 10} sadlAlag
SEM Pa320.d 0} 890N —8L0Z ‘6L AON | 0} poddns |euoissajoid apiaoid 0) JuelnsUOD | nuojusuum | BLIGLILL 8L/02/1L 000'sZ$ B HOS |IIM Yaleag aAljnoaxy
‘lemauay
ieah auQ ‘gL0oz uefsq juop Buo
's)se} Brup uo ssessoul 050 B Auo ‘saakojdwsa anlisuas A1a)es 10) S80IAI9S 20188 4O dAIsUBS Alsjes Joj seoies v R 4
UIM NSHI Yim J0BIJUOS [emBusl Ljuow | asnge 2ouBsgns;/ [oyoaly g Bnug Joy saoinaes od SYIUoW 71|, wpy Aued payy
-zl 3yl Buipusixe sl S1vD — 6L/g/g | lolensiuiwpy Buiked piayl pejepuew Y14 | nuop uamm 0Z/0E/p 6L/LIS 000°SL$ NSHI »€ 104oojy @ Bnug
SJUBLILIOD | SOION papiAclg panoiddy ajeq ajeq Jwy awepN adAL uondiuosag
Jonpold /S82IAIaS pieog pug ueys Jopuap nuon LIV VLTS
sSyjuouw ¢ 0} | UlyuMm uoidy pieog Buipuad sjoafoid = anig _ mou [eaosddy pieog spasu | Wa)| UOIIOY = MO||DA _ 61L0Z ‘Ol |LUdy

pleog S1Vv9 Joj bupsi juswaindoid S1VI




SoAnp Jsuio (laoL juswabeuep
pue OO WuBl| By isIssY — BLOZ “Roueoen 00D Buly yim sisisse pue 00D aLizzioL . Ined) 911
18qojaQ “JopusA S} uwm JoENUOD | wusu| sy Ag suonelado S1vD Jo yBisienc 9028102 Od 1wy xepy salysnpu| | JOIUSS S1VD O} J0SIAPY
mau e uo Buppom si S1vD — GL/LIE | 40} seowmuss [euoissajoid sapiaoid JUBNNSUOD | suon uanum 61/82/2 gLizzioL 000°05% aby meN m:o_um._wno JoIUusg
"SISEQ papaau
Se ue uo 'QyD pue Jebeuepy WUSWSIND0I4 p%%ﬁ_:ﬂ:oo
‘suoioun) JuswaINdold | aYy) Ag paubisse S SHSE] JUSWaINdold Jaylo BIN20.d
pazjepeds Jaujo puB  SDUEJSISSE | puB ‘SJIAIBS [[BD-UO, Unm Bunjom Ajjeoyinads Nowm__paoﬂmon_ Wy Xep ZapueulsH juejinsuon
juswaunoold Bupinsuo) — gLOZ 3dag | 'seolaes JUswaindold sspiaoid  JUBINSUOD | 5uon usapum 6L/6/6 gL/0LI6 000°0S% Ayjey jusweinaold
"pin|d 1SNEUXT
2831 pue IO auIgin] 2INelpAH Jo}
piq }s8mo| sem Jen4 zenbiy eseals
[29UM %8 PIN|4 UOISSILWSUEI] ‘IO J010}
10 JesD) - Joj pIg 1S9MO] BU} Sem IO (piny
JSB0D UNS — 'sjonpold peleey (10 10 1sneyxs
Aisnjap pue aseyoind ayy Joy siaddns [esalp
ajesedas z O} pleme pig Mau ‘llo auigIny
SURWIWON | SBION papiAoid panoiddy ajeq aleq 1y aweN adA | uonduasag
Jonpold /SediAlag pieog pug ueis JOpuap nuon CRITVETS

syjuow ¢ o} | ulyym uonoy pieog Buipuad syoeloid = anjg

_ mou |erosddy pieog spaau [ Wa)| U030y = MO||BA

610Z ‘9l |udy

pieog S1Vv9 10} m:_“—.m_l_ juswiaindold S1VO




